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Foreword

In Aug. 2000 I was informed that the New York
Stock Exchange (NYSE) was after me. The NYSE
lawyers in this matter were Baker Botts L.L.P., the
second oldest law firm west of the Mississippi and the
namesake of the politically-connected Baker family,
i.e., former U.S. Secretary of State James’A. Baker III.
In fact, Baker Botts is considered a proving ground of
sorts for some of the country’s most prominent politi-
cians. Verbally challenged former U.S. president
George W. Bush worked in the mailroom of this firm.

The NYSE was incensed that | had been critical of
them through an online newspaper | founded,
WallStreetJovial.com, a play on their venerable The
Wall Street Journal. My obvious intent was that people
on Wall Street are jovial because they’re robbing eve-
ryone blind, legally. Of course, they couldn’t effective-
ly sue me because all of what | had written was true.
So, they attacked from a different angle.

As part of an online chat room, | had selected as
my screen name the NYSE’s poster child of greed, Ri-
chard A. Grasso. At the time of these posts, “Dick”
Grasso was not yet a household name. His phony bra-
vado after the 9-11 false flag attacks in getting the ex-
change up and running—in addition to revelations of
his outsized pay package—assured him a place in U.S.
history.

One of the NYSE’s demands was that | never again
type the words “Richard A. Grasso”™—or any variation
thereof—on my keyboard that would be destined in
any way, shape or form for the Internet. |1 was shocked,
and therefore refused. Ultimately, federal judge Robert



L. Carter proclaimed in his “Opinion” that the First
Amendment protected my posts. So, Baker Botts
backed off.

The shock that | felt at being asked to limit what |
wrote in a public forum was similar to the shock 1 still
feel today when confronted with so-called Holocaust
Denial Laws that prevent individuals in certain coun-
tries from coming to their own conclusions on the Jew-
ish “Holocaust” of WWII. Individuals are allowed to
think that the “Holocaust” unfolded in a way different
than the official narrative, they just can’t speak it.

There are various reasons why certain countries
have enacted these laws, but the natural question aris-
es: Why is this information so sacred and taboo that it
can’t be challenged? Why can every other topic in the
western world be questioned except the “Holocaust”?
What are “they” afraid will be uncovered?

“They” have been at the vanguard promulgating
these laws in the following countries: Austria, Bel-
gium, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Czech Republic,
France, Germany, Hungary, lIsrael, Liechtenstein, Lux-
embourg, The Netherlands, Poland, Portugal, Roma-
nia, Spain, Switzerland, and the European Union.
That’s right, if your research brings you to a different
conclusion than what “they” have offered, you can ac-
tually be fined and/or imprisoned. Just ask WWII his-
torian and author of 30 books David Irving, or German
nationalist and publisher Ernst Ziindel. Both of these
educated scholars are interested in only one thing: the
truth. Irving was imprisoned for 13 months in solitary
confinement, and Ziindel—kidnapped from his home
in the U.S.—was locked up for over five years and en-
dured inhumane conditions that were more fitting for



mass murderer, not a revisionist historian. All for read-
ing, thinking, writing and speaking about a subject that
was considered “taboo.”

Dave Gahary
January 10, 2012






PART ONE

Deconstructing Holocaust Mythology



The Holocaust Hoax Exposed



INTRODUCTION:
A SUSPENSION OF DISBELIEF

It’s the 20th century’s most preposterous fairytale,
also known as the holocaust hoax. Anyone approach-
ing this subject with an open mind should seriously
consider using the words of 1 Corinthians 13:11 as
their guide. “It’s time to put away childish things.” So,
akin to Santa Claus, the Easter Bunny and any other
figment of the imagination, the tale of six million Jews
being exterminated in National Socialist death camps
is nothing more than a deceptive ruse.

In the following pages readers will encounter some
of the most imaginative storytelling known to man-
kind. Or, if we call a spade a spade, the lies perpetrated
by holohoax “historians” are so egregious, weakly
constructed and downright ludicrous that it’d be hila-
rious if it weren’t so pathetic. Who needs scandal-
ridden Jewish satirist Lenny Bruce for chuckles when
these tall tales make for more humorous comedy ma-
terial?

The official story handed down for the past six
generations has Nazis exterminating six million Jews
in concentration camps during World War Il. Of
course, something can allegedly be “proven true”
thousands of times, but if it’s disproven on only one
occasion, it can never be true again.

While keeping this important truism in mind, if any
impartial researcher utilized the scientific method,
they’d discover that it’s literally child’s play to shred,
dissect and leave for dead the flimsy holocaust myth.



Using simple common sense, reason and logic, the en-
tire house of cards surrounding this massive fraud
crumbles under the weight of its own lies. Only
through a complete and utter suspension of disbelief
can this absurd deception be accepted.

Naturally, there exist highly paid conmen (and con-
4men) who proclaim that no one can discuss, debate

r even dare to question this paper tiger called the ho-
locaust. One of the most debauched propagandists,
Deborah Lipstadt, says there can be no alternate ver-
sion to the holocaust yam other than the officially
sanctioned one. However, in an open society that

Deborah Lipstadt

should be promoting intellectual discussion and de-
bate, if anyone dares to broach this subject instead of
walking in jack-booted lockstep with the Jewish prop-
aganda machine, they’re immediately labeled “anti-
Semitic.” In the Zionist’s Orwellian Ministry of Un-
truth, one repeats only the Big Brother mantra of Six



Million Six Million Six Million, or else they suffer ir-
reparable consequences.

In Europe, scores of researchers have been impri-
soned for merely questioning holocaust numbers or
claims. They committed absolutely no crime what-
soever other than simply asking questions. For such an
apparent offense, they were thrown behind bars for,
sometimes, years at a time. Is that what we want in the
United States of America, too?

Does our First Amendment still apply, or will we
bow to a dictatorial, maniacal iron fist of intolerance
and suppression? Because a clandestine group of
scriptwriters carefully crafted this elaborate hoax,
should the rest of society be forced to unwittingly ac-
cept it without argument just because they said so?

With this book—and many published previous to
it—the cat is now out of its proverbial bag and the em-
peror has been exposed as wearing no clothes. Santa
Claus is an infantile charade, and the holocaust is
laughable in its sheer absurdity.



\
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LABOR CAMPS,
NOT DEATH FACTORIES

To proceed in investigating this matter, the use of
critical thought is crucial. At the height of WW I, the

Germans had approximately eight million men fighting

their various battles on all fronts; three million in Rus-
sia alone. The Germans were so desperate for soldiers
by war’s end that they were drafting literally every
able-bodied man between the ages of 16 and 45. In es-
sence, anyone they could get their hands on.

Let’s remember: this is WW Il—the biggest mili-
tary operation in history. Four million Germans were
eventually killedvSo, considering the vast require-
ments needed for their war machine, who made all the
tanks, bullets, uniforms, guns, boots, helmets, and
I'scores of other necessities to maintain their armies on
the battlefield?

Put another way, with all their men already fighting
the war, Germany sought workers for their factories by
any means necessary. In this regard, if the Jews could
serve as much-needed labor, how logical would it be to
then kill these workers?

Furthermore, one of the primary reasons Germany
lost WW Il was because Allied forces cutoff their fuel
supplies. As a result, Germany was forced to create
synthetic oil. Being that their massive war machine—
tanks, jeeps, trains and planes—required exorbitant
amounts of fuel, how is it possible that the Germans
would expend (i.e. waste) the millions of gallons of
fuel needed to gas six million Jews?



As will be proven later, not a single Jew was deli-
berately gassed to death in any German-maintained
concentration camp. Thus, are we to swallow the line
that Germany would squander their resources to trans-
port six  million
Jews, by train, to
foreign  countries
only to kill them
abroad?

For those still
clinging to the ho-
locaust fable, it’s
time to start pop-
ping a few balloons.

On Dec. 28, 1942
Heinrich  Himmler
issued a command.
“The death rate
in concentration
camps must be re-
duced at all costs.” :

Such a demand is
peculiar because weren’t the Nazis supposed to be
murdering their Jewish inmates, not sparing their
lives? In response, camp inspector Richard Glucks
wrote on Jan. 20, 1943, “Every means will be used to
lower death rates.”

Then, by Apr. 10, 1943 Oswald Pohl’s Economic
Administration Office revealed that deaths had plum-
meted in their work centers from 8.5 percent in July
1942 to 2.8 percent in June 1943.

These numbers make perfect sense, especially at
Auschwitz, which was a sprawling industrial center



desperate for laborers. Himmler’s exact words were,
“Camp doctors are to see to it that working conditions
at the various labor places are improved as much as
possible.” Himmler also inspected each camp to eva-
luate its efficiency . . . not in executing workers, but
instead to determine how effectively they were produc-
ing war goods. If laborers died, it hampered produc-
tion.

Also, Reinhard Heydrich, head of Germany’s se-
cret police and
purported “Final
Solution” author
at the notorious
Wannsee Confe-
rence, actually
wrote on Jan.
20, 1942, “Un-
der proper direc-
tion the Jews
should now in
the course of the
Final  Solution
[Endlosung] be
brought to the
East in a suitable
way for use as
labor.”

Likewise, in
Apr. 1942 SS
Gen. Oswald Pohl demanded, “Mobilization of the la-
bor power of all internees primarily for war tasks must
take absolute precedence.”



Jews, similar to Slavs, gypsies, homosexuals and
Catholics were all valuable commodities that could be
put to work in factories owned by companies such as
I.G. Farben. Photographs from the early-to-mid 1940s
reveal that Auschwitz was an enormous industrial
complex where rubber, medical supplies, weaponry
and clothes were manufactured.

At Auschwitz alone, 39 different work camps ex-
isted, 19 consisting primarily of Jews. One factory—
Monowitz No. 16 camp—nboasted 126,000 laborers.
Clearly, Jews were a vital aspect of keeping the wheels
of their war machine rolling.

On Apr. 17, 1943 Adolf Hitler made a request of
Adm. Milos Horthy. He wanted “100,000 Jews to
work on a new pursuit plane program.” How strange,
especially since we’re told that Hitler supposedly
wanted each and every Jew imaginable to be extermi-
nated. Then, in May 1944 Hitler, of his own volition,
sought 200,000 more Jews to work in his war machine
factories.

200,000—that’s an extremely large number, and

when added to the previous 100,000—that’s plenty of
Jews kept alive, not slaughtered.
" Forced labor served as a key component of Germa-
ny’s war efforts, especially during the final years from
1943-1945. Again, at Auschwitz, almost 1,000 indus-
trial sub-camps were spawned to provide labor. Jews,
among others, also built roads and houses, picked up
trash, or worked as miners in quarries.

At the risk of being repetitive, Jews were cheap la-
bor that was exploited by the SS, I.G. Farben, and nu-
merous German manufacturers. For example, at



Auschwitz, workers produced Buna, a synthetic rubber
used to make tires.

Why would the Germans ship hundreds of thou-
sands of slaves to factories only to kill them? Such a
thought is absurd. Again, Germany was inordinately
desperate for workers. Homicidal gas chambers were
the furthest notion from their minds.

To document this fact, the Netherlands Red Cross
released letters written by Jewish workers at Ausch-
witz. In their correspondences, they described their du-
ties as “hard but tolerable,” the food as *“adequate,”
and their sleeping quarters as “good.”

Let’s address one simple proposition: during WW
II’s most heated moments, why would the Germans
transform vast industrial centers like Auschwitz—that
supplied their war machine—into extermination
camps? All of the resources needed to supply their
troops would suddenly be diverted into ovens to cook
people, particularly when they were fighting the Amer-
icans, English, French and Russians on various fronts.

A case in point: on Aug. 15, 1944 Hungarian Jews
totaling 90,000 were exported to work centers. Later in
that same year, Himmler stated that 40 percent more
fighter planes rolled off the assembly line due to labor
provided by these Hungarian Jews. Far from wanting
them incinerated, Jewish labor was an asset to the
Germans. The Holocaust extermination theory simply
doesn’t make sense.



FUEL SHORTAGES:
ONE OF THE PRIMARY REASONS
WHY GERMANY LOST THE WAR

At the risk of letting facts interfere with a good
hoax, Germany—to a great extent—Ilost the war be-
cause they ran out of fuel. That’s a historical, military
certainty. Being so desperately low on this vital re-
source, why would they deliberately direct fuel to al-
leged genocidal crematoria rather than feed tanks,
jeeps, trains and fighter jets? Such a move would epi-
tomize waste, especially when Germany actually tried
to win WW 1.

U.S. reconnaissance photofrom WW I
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i In addition, why won’t the holocaust crowd tell
people that during the war, U.S. reconnaissance planes

/snapped thousands of photos of Germany’s country-
side? Yet not a single one of these pictures depicts
long lines of fuel trucks traveling to the supposed cre-
matoria (including those in Poland). Obviously, to slay
six million people, literally thousands of tankers would
be needed to supply enough for the ovens. But not a
shred of evidence exists confirming that fuel trucks
were used for this purpose.

Strangely, U.S. spy planes also didn’t photograph
any billowing smokestacks that would have emitted
exhaust from ovens operating on a 24-hour basis to kill
six million people. Imagine the vastness of an opera-
tion needed to cremate six million people, yet no
spewing smokestacks.

It gets even more peculiar. The Germans kept meti-
culous records that were seized following WW I, yet
not a single book can be located documenting tens of
thousands of trucks delivering fuel to any of the pur-
ported crematoria. These records don’t exist because
Germany required the petrol for more pressing matters,
namely fighting the war.

Then there’s the pesky little problem of coal that
could have been used to cremate Jews. But hundreds
of thousands of tons of coal was instead used to pro-
duce synthetic gasoline. In simplest terms, the Ger-
mans couldn’t generate enough fuel to even keep their
war machine running, let alone to cook six million
Jews. That’s one of the primary reasons why they lost
the war.



LOGISTICS: NOT ENOUGH TIME
OR MANPOWER TO IMPLEMENT
SUCH A MASSIVE OPERATION

Instead of playing ring-around-the-rosie (like holo-
caust historians do), let’s be realistic. Why would sup-
posed genocidal Germans exert millions of man-hours
transporting Jews out of their own country in order tc
slaughter them on foreign soil? Imagine how many
trains, thousands of gallons of fuel, and personnel
would be needed to undertake such a task. Why tie up
the rails with millions of Jews transported hundreds of
miles when these same trains could be used to carry
soldiers and munitions?

If the SS were such efficient killers, why not just
shoot a single bullet on German soil into the heads of
these Jews? Pardon the sarcasm, but maybe this expla-
nation and the use of practical common sense makes
the picture a little bit too clear.

Also, when viewing photos of Auschwitz and other
camps, why build thousands of housing units to let
Jews live in when—allegedly—they were only going
to be killed anyway? Or, were all these barracks in-
stead utilized to house valuable laborers? Plus, why
were the Germans constructing water purification
plants on the premises if Jews were merely going to be
killed? Dead people don’t need to drink water, but la-
borers do.

For that matter, let’s slaughter another sacred cow:
If Nazis solely intended to kill Jews, why waste the



energy tattooing them? Or, were these identification
numbers instead a way to keep track of their workers?



SAFETY AND COMFORT:
CONCENTRATION CAMPS WERE
THE SAFEST PLACE FOR JEWS IN
EUROPE DURING WW I

Pardon the insistence on actuardocumentation, but
footage from German-run work camps during WW I
shows shopping centers on the premises, not to men-
tion sports fields (for soccer matches), swimming
pools, town squares, concert halls, libraries and post
offices.

Considering war-tom Germany during the latter
part of WW I, especially in the ghettoes, many labor-
ers forced into these industrial centers actually found
an improved standard-of-living. Now, rather than rely-
ing on infantile reasoning, why would the Germans
provide all these amenities if they were simply going
to cremate millions of Jews?

Or, were these creature comforts instead intended
to keep their workers at least relatively contented? In
addition, evidence shows that productive laborers in-
side these camps were granted special privileges,

including
nights at the
orchestra.

Instead of
tap dancing
around  the
issue, the fact
remains that

Lagergeld work camp money



concentration camp money, called “Lagergeld®’ was
created to pay laborers for their effortsTThis currency
was used at Auschwitz, Buchenwald and Dachau. This
payment system included Jewish employees who re-
ceived “scrip” papers that they later redeemed to buy
goods at stores located inside these industrial centers.

What a queer idea, don’t you think, giving Jewish
slaves a paycheck ... the same ones that the Nazis
were supposedly going to execute in ovens?

Taken one step further, not only weren’t there any

Examples ofwork camp currency

execution camps operated by the Nazis, these labor fa-
cilities actually became some of the safest places in
Eyrope by war’s end.
Because western powers had investments in camps
E as 1.G. Farben, they deliberately didn’t bomb the
industrial centers (i.e. concentration camps) be-
use it would have cost them too much money. As
such, since Jews were working at these labor camps,
they were, in effect, safer under German control than
was most anyone else in the population (especially in



Dresden, which suffered an atrocious, real-life fire-

bombing holocaust).

I.G. Farben industrial center

How inconvenient,
don’t you think, when
facts illuminate a sub-
ject that had previously
been so muddied by
disinformation and
propaganda. Whereas
German families were
getting decimated and
killed by the thousands
during  Allied on-
slaughts, the Jews were
protected and safe in
their work camps.

So, let’s be clear.
The Jews were residing
in Polish and German
centers, kept safely
apart from everyday

Germans that were dying horrific deaths on a daily ba-
sis. These Jews weren’t being fried in gas chambers.
Rather, after each workday, the Jews lounged in libra-
ries, watched soccer matches, were attended to by doc-
tors and nurses, and attended symphonies.

Ask yourself: why would the Germans keep Jews
healthy with medical care in state-of-the-art hospitals
only to expunge them later? Or, how is it possible to
believe the holocaust historians’ cock-and-bull stories
that Jews were gassed only hours after stepping off
trains carrying them to Poland? It simply isn’t true.



But once the war ended, the Jewish agenda necessi-
tated that a fabrication called the holocaust be invented
to further their aims. In such a light, this may be a

| good time to quote Jewish doctor Aryeh Leon Kubovy
of Tel Aviv’s Israeli Center for Jewish Documentation.
He clearly stated, “There exists no document signed by
Hitler, Himmler or Heydrich speaking of exterminat-
ing Jews ... and, the word ‘extermination’ does not
appear in the letter from [Hermann] Goering to Hey-
drich concerning the Final Solution of the Jewish ques-
tion.”



NUMBER OF DECEASED IN WORK
CAMPS KEEPS BEING LOWERED

Since 1945, reports on the number of Jews that
died during WW Il kept being revised and lowered.
However, as the totals continued tp drop, inexplicably
the fabricated figure of six million remained un-
changed.

Moreover, once the Nazis rose to power in Germa-
ny, Jews began leaving that country, as they did the
continent of Europe as a whole. Their destinations in-
cluded Palestine, the U.S., and Russia (among others).
Their movements were so staggering that it became a
defacto second exodus.

On June 9, 1945 Freiling Foster of Colliers maga-
zine pinpointed the population of Jews in German-
occupied Europe at 3,450,000. This figure is interest-
ing because how could six million Jews die in a holo-
caust when there weren’t even that many living in Eu-
rope at the time?

Even more telling, when the Nazis became a prom-
inent force to be dealt with in 1933, only 560,000 Jews
resided in Germany. In those regions closest to Hitler’s
government—specifically Germany, Czechoslovakia
and Austria—only 360,000 Jews remained after 1939.
Is the picture starting to become clear? There weren’t
even six million Jews living in Europe during the time
of Hitler’s reign that could have been killed.

On July 13, 1994 PBS (KENW-TV) televised an
account of famed pilot Charles Lindbergh’s life. Dur-
ing this documentary, it was claimed that Lindberg vi-



sited one of Germany’s labor camps and returned to
say that only 25,000 total people perished in one-and-
a-half years.

Strangely,

Simon  Wiesen-

thal—a notorious-

ly deceptive Nazi

hunter—boasted

after WW 11 that

Germany  killed

10 million Jews

in Poland, Latvia

and Lithuania

alone.  Similarly,

in 1943—two

years before WW

11 ended—Rafael

Lemkin, author of

Axis Rule in Occupied Europe, alleged that six million
Jews had already died by 1943. He’s also the man who
created the term *“genocide.” Oddly enough, in Feb.
1943 Reader’ Digest also stated that six million Jews
had already been killed.

But did any type of genocidal extermination occur
in regard to the Jews? An examination of the numbers
is merited. On Mar. 24, 1933 the Daily Express, a Jew-
ish newspaper, listed the total Jews worldwide at 14
million. The 1933 World Almanac, p. 419, estimated
the number of Jews at 15,316,359.

Continuing, the 1936 World Almanac, p. 748, had
the worldwide Jewish population at 15,753,633, while
in 1938 it was 15,748,091. In 1939, the American Jew-



ish Committee Bureau of the Synagogue Council cited
the Jewish population at 15.6 million.

World Almanac 1940 - 15.3 million
1941 - 15.7 million
1942 - 15.1 million
1947 - 15.6 million
1949 - 15.7 million

World Almanac 1945 edition

Let’s pause for a mo-
ment to consider these
figures. When America
entered the war in 1941,
Jews globally totaled 15.7
million. Supposedly, by
the end of WW 1l in 1945,
the Nazis had expunged
six million Jews. Yet in
1947, the total Jewish
population—according to
the esteemed World Al-

manac—was 15.6 million—essentially no change
whatsoever. How can that possibly be?

r  Adding more weight to this argument, on Feb. 22,
1948 the New York Times listed total Jews worldwide
at 15.6 million, plus another 600,000-700,000 living i
Palestine. The grand total equals 16.2 million—mor

\ than when WW Il began. _

Hanson Baldwin, a renowned war historian for the
New York Times, likewise placed the number of Jews
in the world circa 1948 at over 15 million. Curiously,
in 1943 a publication called Information Please pro-
vided a number of 15,152,098 Jews worldwide.



In this same vein, in 1946 the Red Cross released a
report with a bombshell revelation: between 270,000-
300,000 registered inmates of all nationalities perished
in German-controlled work camps. Of these, no more
than half were Jews, and these individuals died primar-
ily of typhoid and other diseases.

Even more importantly, the Red Cross made it
clear that the majority of deaths occurred as the war
wound down and Allied bombing campaigns oblite-
rated all food and supply lines to the work camps.

Equally as interesting, the International Red Cross
examined extremely detailed German death records
and determined that a total of 150,000 workers died at
Auschwitz, with only 30,000 being Jewish. Of course,
holocaust historians maintained for decades that the

~Nazis eliminated four million Jews at Auschwitz.

The Red Cross should know because during the
war, Nazi officers allowed them to make regular deli-
veries and inspections of their various work camps. In
their own words, the Red Cross reported, “As many as
9,000 parcels were packed daily. From the autumn of
1943 until May 1945, about 1,112,000 parcels with a
total weight of 4,500 tons were sent to the concentra-
tion camps.”

If concentration camps were intended to be death
chambers where Jews were killed by the multi-
millions, why did the Nazis allow Red Cross personnel
to deliver so much food, clothing and medicine?

Let’s dig even deeper into their data. In June 1946,
document # 9925, the Red Cross interviewed inmates
freed from various Nazi-run camps at the end of WW
Il. These individuals were asked if they witnessed any



gassings. The Red Cross then wrote, “The detainees
themselves have not spoken of them.”

None of the workers confirmed rumors of “killing
factories.” Remember, during the entirety of WW I,
the Red Cross constantly delivered supplies to these
camps. Never once did they file a complaint or make
any records of Auschwitz ovens used to gas human be-
ings. Not once, not even in their 1,600-page 1946 re-
port. Nor did they mention any shower stalls or sho-
werheads disguised to deliver gas that was used for
mass executions.

To convey the importance of this information, nev-
er once in their extensive post-war biographies did
Dwight David Eisenhower, Winston Churchill,
France’s Charles de Gaulle or Harry Truman mention
extermination camps in Germany (or countries that
AGermans occupied). Furthermore, during the war nei-
ther the Red Cross, other humanitarian agencies, the/
Vatican, or any of the Allied governments ever broach
the subject of a holocaust that exterminated six million
Jews. A

The Red Cross claimed that at war’s end, a total of
120,000 survivors of all nationalities were released or
freed from concentration camps. During the war a total
of 3.4 million Jews resided in German-occupied Eu-
rope. We know this figure is accurate because the
World Jewish Congress published a book entitled Uni-
ty in Dispersion that stated on p. 377, “The majority of
German Jews succeeded in leaving Germany before
the war broke out.”

Further, to cite Freiling Foster again in the June 9,
1945 issue of Colliers magazine, “2.2 million [Jews]



have migrated to the Soviet Union since 1939 to es-
cape from the Nazis.”

So, roughly 3.4 million Jews lived in Europe dur-

ing WW I, and there were only 120,000 total concen-
tration camp survivors. But then something strange
began to happen. TDn Mar. 31, 1956 the German gov-
ernment settled claims with 400,000 concentration
camp “survivors.” Then, on June 30, 1965—nearly a
decade later—3,375,020 more Jews claimed to be ho-
locaust survivors.
* As stated, however, only 3.4 million Jews even re-
sided in all of Europe during WW I1l. Then, amazingly,
by the year 2000, the nation of Israel proclaimed a to-
tal number of holocaust survivors at 1,092,000. Now,
if this is the number 55 years after the war, and consi-
dering that “survivors” naturally would have perished
over the course of five decades, then conceivably the
purported number of holocaust survivors in 1945
would have been—at least according to holocaust his-
torians—over five million.

So, let’s reexamine the numbers. There were sup-
posedly six million Jews exterminated during WW I
and another five million survivors. Yet, all of Europe
only had 3.4 million total Jews. Does anyone think the
math is a bit fuzzy here?
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THE TORTURED “CONFESSIONS”

OF RUDOLF HOESS

On Apr. 6,
1946 a document
purported to be
the confession of
former Auschwitz
SS commandant
Rudolf Hoess was
presented to a
team of U.S.
prosecutors at the
Nuremberg Trials.
Nine days later,
Hoess testified
before the Nu-
remberg Tribunal
to declare that
from May 1940 to
Dec. 1943 he per-
sonally witnessed,
“At least 2.5 mil-
lion victims [that]

RudolfHoess

were executed and exterminated by gassing and burn-

ing.

Notably, Hoess was the only person at Nuremberg
that testified to personally seeing the “burning and
gassing of live Jews.” According to him, in his role as
an SS commandant, he visited concentration camps at
Belzec and Treblinka in June 1941. But, contrary to his



/words, Belzec didn’t even begin operations until Mar.
L 1942, while Treblinka didn’t open until July 1942.

Hoess also testified to witnessing exterminations at
a camp known as Wolzek. Except, historians later ad-
mitted that no facility known as Wolzek ever existed.
His confession was a complete fabrication.

In addition, Hoess described how 2,000 Jews at a
time were crammed into the Krema Il gas chamber at
Auschwitz. In later years, other “eyewitnesses”
claimed that 3,000-4,000 victims were packed into
Krema Il. The problem, however, is that this small
room had a floor surface area of only 210 square me-
ters. To shove thousands of frantic individuals simul-
taneously into a room this small would prove to be a
logistical nightmare.

Even more ludicrous, Hoess alleged that a mere 10
minutes after thousands of men and women were ex-
terminated in this cramped room via the use of Zyklon
B, Nazi guards smoking cigarettes would open the
doors and begin .extracting the corpses. Y et, the manu-
facturers of this substance agree that Zyklon B requires
a 24-hour ventilation time, while no one could possibly
light cigarettes in such a flammable environment.

The question arises: how could Hoess make such
laughably ridiculous claims that were so easily picked
apart? The answer: he didn’t make these confessions,
at least of his own volition.

Instead, a Jewish military intelligence officer for
the Brits named Bernard Clarke, along with five other
English soldiers, spent three days torturing Hoess until
he eventually provided a “confession.” The beatings
by this team of torture specialists were so extreme that



Hoess nearly died. The soldiers also threatened his

wife and children.

Rupert Butler described the horrendous procedures

k

Legions of Death that chronicles the tor-
tures committed by Bernard Clarke and
others

in his book Le-
gions of Death.
“The prisoner was
tom from the top

. bunk, the pajamas

ripped from his
body. He was then
dragged naked to
one of the slaugh-
ter tables where it
seemed to Clarke
the blows and
screams were end-
less. Eventually,
the medical offic-
er urged the cap-
tain: call them off
unless you want to
take  back a
corpse.”

Hoess later de-
scribed the torture
inflicted upon
him. “During the
first interrogation

they beat me to obtain evidence. | do not know what
was in the transcript or what | said even though I
signed it because they gave me liquor and beat me
with a whip. It was too much even for me to bear.”






However, Anne, her father Otto, and her sister Margot
were all assigned to Auschwitz, yet none was executed
there. Why not? They were later reassigned to Bergen-
Belsen. Only Anne’s mother Edith supposedly died at
Auschwitz, allegedly of starvation, not in a gas cham-
ber.

At the Belsen facility, Anne died of typhus only
months before the war ended. She#wvasn’t gassed in an
oven, nor was she shot. Instead, Anne Frank and her
sister died when supply lines were cut by Allied bomb-
ings. Indeed, due to complications that worsened in
conjunction with the massive onslaughts unleashed by
U.S. and British forces, Anne Frank perished in Mar.
1945 from far less dramatic causes than a “final solu-

,tion.”

Of course, if the Nazis had simply wanted to eradi-
cate every Jew in their possession, why didn’t they
immediately toss Anne Frank and her family into
ovens as soon as they disembarked from trains arriving
at Auschwitz? Why keep this young girl alive for two
months at Auschwitz, only to transport her yet again to
Bergen-Belsen where they fed and tended to her for
another five months? Doesn’t that seem to be an inor-
dinate amount of effort to maintain the life of a 14-
year-old girl?

But then again, what of her much-touted diary?
We’re told Anne Frank, then a 12-year-old from Ams-
terdam, fled the Nazis with her family and, while hid-
ing in a secret annex, wrote of her travails. Eventually,
her family was discovered and sent to the above-
mentioned concentration camps.

Except, seven years after this book’s publication,
tpe New York Supreme Court ruled it was a hoax. Yes,



a forgery that was, by and large, compiled by Anne
Frank’s father after WW 1l ended.

as Then, in 1959 a Swedish journal called Frida Ord

(revealed that Anne Frank’s father contacted a Jewish

novelist named

Meyer Levin to

craft much of

the dialogue

found in this

supposed diary.

To cash in on

the royalties re-

sulting from

this  bestseller,

Levin sued
Anne  Frank’s
father and

emerged victo-
rious with a
$50,000 judg-
ment.

French professor Robert Faurisson also invested a
great deal of time investigating this matter, only to find
that a teenage girl could not have created such a re-
markable literary masterpiece.

Most glaring of all is the fact that segments of this
/“diary” were written in ballpoint pen—not to mention
J the use of two completely different styles of handwrit-
| ing—one of Levin, and the other of Anne Frank’s fa-
; ther. Worse, ballpoint pens weren’t even available on

the market until after WW Il ended, thus making it im-
| possible for Anne Frank to have written her original
, draft using such an implement.



Even Jews were suspicious of the diary’s legitima-
cy because, being raised in the Jewish faith, Miss
Frank’s supposed memoirs fail to mention Passover,
special holidays, and most other Jewish religious is-
sues. It appeared this “Jewish” girl had little or no con-
cern about anything Jewish at all.



FRED LEUCHTER:
SCIENCE DEBUNKS FANTASY
AT AUSCHWITZ

In 1988 Fred Leuchter, an expert on the construc-
tion of gas chambers, traveled to Poland in order to in-
vestigate whether mass
Killings took place at

Birkenau, Lublin,
Auschwitz and Majda-
nek.

Leuchter meticulously
collected samples from
the walls and floors of
the above-mentioned
“gas chambers” to test
them for cyanide residue,
which obviously would
have been evident in
these structures if mil-
lions of executions had been conducted.

His discoveries were startling: forensic evidence
exhibited very little, or no traces whatsoever, of the
poisonous gas Zyklon B that holocaust historians say
was used in the alleged death camps.

In contrast, cyanide levels in the Auschwitz debus-
ing quarters (used to rid clothing of lice) were three
orders of magnitude higher than they were in the “gas
chambers.” Stated differently, the debusing chambers
were one part per thousand versus one part per million
in the alleged death rooms.



This information, as will be discussed more exten-
sively in a later chapter, is undeniably clear. The only
reason Zyklon B was ever used was to remove lice,
from the clothing of impoverished labor camp work-/
ers. These lice, if unchecked, led to massive outbreaks
of typhus and other diseases. The Nazis didn’t use
Zyklon B to kill Jews. Rather, they used it to improve
the lives of their workers by making conditions more
sanitary.

With no indication of Zyklon B embedded in the
walls of these so-called gas chambers, Leuchter con-

cluded that the entire story
was a fraud. Three years af-
ter his study, the Polish gov-
ernment engaged in similar
tests. They too found that,
due to no evidence of Zyk-
lon B in any of the “death
rooms,” no gassings oc-
curred.
Another severe blow to
this fable occurred when, in
a private forensic examina-
tion, the Auschwitz State
Museum commissioned Krakow’s Institute of Forensic
Research to determine the predominance of Zyklon B.
Their study mirrored Fred Leuchter’s analysis: a min-
imum, or complete lack of, Zyklon B in locales suppo-
sedly used to gas millions of Jews.

The Leuchter Report next confronted construction

techniques used at these facilities. He discovered:



* Not one of the alleged death rooms was sealed
with gaskets, a must if poison gas were utilized for
murderous purposes.

* No inlets were present to inject the gas or distri-
bute it throughout these rooms.

» Lighting fixtures were not explosion proof.

* No exhaust fans or outlets were present to release
gasses from these chambers. Without such vital devic-
es, lethal gasses would have also killed German per-
sonnel present on the scene. No exhaust stacks had ev-
er been installed during the war.

* Remarkably, specifically at Auschwitz, floor
drains in the alleged death rooms were linked directly
o the work camp’s storm drainage network. Obvious-
y, if Zyklon B were introduced into these chambers, it
Would have permeated the entire water system at
Auschwitz, consequently killing everybody, Jew and
non-Jew alike.

* Lastly, all the rooms were so small that, by simple
arithmetic, six million Jews could not have been ex-
terminated in the allotted time period.

Leuchter noted in his report, “The author finds no
evidence that any of the facilities normally alleged to
be execution gas chambers were ever used as such and
find, further, that because of the design and fabrication
of these facilities, they could not have been utilized for
execution gas chambers.”

In other words, it was far-fetched and technically
impossible for Auschwitz and other camps to be mass
execution factories. Leuchter added, “We have pro-
vided definitive proof that there were no execution gas
chambers utilized for genocidal purposes by the Ger-



mans at these wartime camps. The simple fact is that
the holocaust story is not true.”

To hammer home this point, consider once agaftTA
the simple numbers. At the various “gas chambers”
that were supposedly used to kill Jews, if each was
maxed-out at 100 percent efficiency operating non-
stop 24 hours a day, seven days a week, it would have
taken 68 years to execute a total of six million Jews”
Since holocaust historians claim these units were onlyY

operation from 1942 to 1945 (i.e. three years), gass-
ings would have continued until the year 2010 to reach
The mythical figure of six million.

Then, if all the deceased bodies had been fed into
crematorium ovens at maximum output—again, 24
hours a day, seven days a week—it would have taken
35 years to cremate six million Jews.

Note: Leuchter testified at the famous 1988 trial of
Ernst Zundel that lasted
four months. Zundel fi-
nanced Leuchter’s Euro-
pean fact-finding mis-
sion—at great personal
expense—to inspect fa-
cilities at Auschwitz,
Birkenau and Majdanek.

Leuchter concluded in his final report, “The alleged
gas chambers at the inspected sites could not have then
been, or now, be utilized or seriously considered to
function as execution gas chambers.”



ZYKLON B USED TO SAVE
JEWISH LIVES,
NOT ERADICATE THEM

According to holocaust mythol-
ogy, during the mid-1940s millions
of Jews, stripped naked and scream-
ing, were crammed by the thou-
sands into small gas chambers
where the doors were locked and
then a poisonous chemical, Zyklon
B, was funneled into these rooms
via fake showerheads or special
ceiling chutes. Then, to maximize i
efficiency that would have been
required to reach the six million
total, almost immediately thereaf-
ter piles of these exterminated
Jews were removed, only to have
the same room systematically
crammed full with more prisoners
waiting to be murdered.

Of course, fans had to remove the poisonous Zyk-
lon B fumes before German soldiers were able to enter
the gas chambers and remove the corpses. Also, as
mentioned earlier, star Nuremberg witness Rudolf
Hoess “confessed” that these German guards would be
smoking cigarettes and eating as they yanked bodies
from the chambers only minutes after they’d been
killed. Therefore, the employees at this facility alle-



gedly strolled into these chambers without wearing gas
masks or any protective body wear.

Another man, Dr. C.S. Bendel, said that German
workers entered the gas chambers only seven minutes
after Zyklon B capsules were introduced. The problem
with his story is that the granules would have only
emitted a small portion of their contents in seven mi-
nutes. If hundreds of people were crammed into a tiny
room, there’s no possibility that Zyklon B could have
killed them in such a short amount of time. Plus,
would the Germans be that inept to enter a room where
poisonous gasses were still being released?

Famed establishment historian William Shirer_as-
certained that gasses were injected "mTiTffiese rooms
via overhead fake showerheads. But again, there’s a
slight problem. Since Zyklon B is a gas, it’s lighter
than air and would subsequently rise toward the ceil-
ing, not the floor. If those trapped inside had scurried
to the ground, they would have prolonged their ability
to live. Furthermore, if more Jews were more tightly
packed into these small rooms, the overall process
used to allegedly kill them would be obviously slowed.
This quandary raises even more doubts about the total
six million number. Thus, the gas story proves espe-
cially troublesome.

» Zyklon B was manufactured to slowly emit its
cyanide gasses. To murder six million Jews while at
the same time verifying Hoess’s testimony, German
guards could not have wasted even a spare second in
entering the gas chambers after Jews were supposedly
killed. But, how could they have shoveled out hun-



*

dreds of corpses piled on top of each other without
these poisonous gasses also affecting them?

. N« Zyklon B designers went on record by saying that

their product clung to clothes and skin. Now remem-
ber, Zyklon B is poisonous. They also added that it
would take at least 24 hours before anyone could enter
a room that had been fumigated with Zyklon B, and
then only wearing the most protective clothing availa-
ble, as well as filtered gas masks. One whiff of this
cyanide gas trapped in clothing would have killed any-
one coming into contact with it. Hoess’s story must
now be dismissed out-of-hand as untruthful. Further,
with a 24-hour airing-out period, reaching the six mil-

\ lion mark is impossible.

* Historians have stated that death chambers had air
vents that released the Zyklon B fumes after thousands
of Jews had been gassed. But when the designs of
these camps were inspected, it became clear that hos-
pitals stood adjacent to the supposed gas chamber fa-
cilities where poisonous gasses would have been re-
leased on an almost non-stop basis to kill six million
people. With even one open window at the hospital or
any other structure, everyone would have died from
the vented poison.

 Cyanide is extremely dangerous. Corpses would
have to remain untouched for at least an entire day be-
fore removal could begin. Plus, cyanide is explosive. If
guards had been smoking cigarettes, as Hoess testified,
they’d become instantaneously inflamed.

» With deceased bodies supposedly stacked by the
hundreds inside these gas chambers, its logical to as-
sume that hydrogen cyanide (HCN) would be trapped
in countless air pockets among their bodies. Once



German guards moved any of them, the HCN would
have wafted into their mouths and noses, killing them
in rather short fashion.

» To further this thought of Germans entering the
chambers smoking and without protective clothing to
drag out dead Jews, the DuPont Company Material
Safety Data Sheet said the following of HCN, the pri-
mary component of Zyklon B. “HCN is unstable with
heat and extremely flammable. It is a fast-acting poi-
son and could be fatal if inhaled, swallowed, or ab
sorbed through the skin.”

The following quotes also contradict the holocaust
historians’ propaganda about Zyklon B.

The American Cvanamid Company, Linden, NJ.—
“We knew of no chemical process whereby HCN
(Zyklon B) may be made to become instantly gaseous
upon exposure to air.” How can anyone believe claims
that Zyklon B was introduced through showerheads,
killing Jews within seven minutes?

Chemist Germar Rudolf—“For chemical-technical
reasons, the claimed mass gassing
with hydrocyanic acid in the al-
leged gas chambers in Auschwitz
did not take place. The supposed
facilities for mass Killings in
Auschwitz and Birkenau were not
suitable for this purpose.” He
added, “Whatever building one
picks at Auschwitz, all are irre-
concilable with the laws of physi-

Germar Rudolf cal science.”



There is not an autopsy in existence that proves
Zyklon B was the agent used to kill Jews during WW
[1jIn this light, Jewish holocaust historian Raul Hil-
berg testified under oath on Jan. 17, 1985, “There is <
single scientific report that shows a gas chamber,
know of no autopsy.” —

Walter Luftk president. Austrian Engineers Cham-
ber—“Mass murder in the manner described with Zyk-
lon B and with carbon monoxide cannot have taken
place because it would violate the laws of nature and
because the necessary technical and organizational
prerequisites were lacking. The crematories could nev-
er have disposed of the number of victims. This may
be considered proven by engineering science. Bodies
are not a combustible material. Their cremation re-
quires a great deal of time and energy.”

In a Mar. 1992 report, Luftl referred to the elimina-
tion of Jews via Zyklon B as “technically impossible.”
He added, “Zyklon B is utterly unsuitable for the pur-
poses of systematic mass murder.”

Dr, William B. Lindsey—As a DuPont Corp.
chemist for 33 years, he testified under oath in 1985, “I
have come to the conclusion that no one was willfully
or purposefully killed with Zyklon B [hydrocyanic ac-
id gas] in this manner. | consider it absolutely imposs-
ible.”

Dr. Charles Larson—A forensic pathologist that
personally inspected war camps after WW Il. After
conducting over 100 autopsies at nearly two-dozen dif-



ferent locales, Larson could not identify a single body
whose death had been caused by gas poisoning.

Jean-Claude Pressac—A holocaust supporter, he
still admitted that 95 percent of all Zyklon B was used
for pest control purposes.

It is also known that one of Zyjclon B’s qualities is
that it clings very strongly to the surfaces it comes into
contact with. Ordinary ventilation systems or fans
aren’t capable of removing it from walls, floors and
ceilings.

However, when Fred Leuchter examined the sup-

posed death chambers and then sent his findings to la-
boratories to be inspected, they found no significant
residue in any of the brickwork or masonry where
Jews were allegedly exterminated with Zyklon B.
r Traces of Zyklon B would have remained in the
walls at Auschwitz and other camps for hundreds of
years, yet scientists can’t find it ... at least not in the
Irooms where Jews were alleged to be murdered.

On the other hand, in the delousing rooms where
clothes and blankets were doused, substantial concen-
trations of Zyklon B were readily discovered. What
conclusions can be reached from this analysis? Zyklon
B wasn’t utilized to gas millions of Jews in tiny con-
centration camp rooms. Rather, the Germans used it to
assist Jews and save their lives by delousing their
clothes and bedding materials that were infected with
lice that caused typhus.

As proof, all the rooms examined after WW 1l that
were used as delousing chambers exhibited a bluish
discoloration—referred to as Iron Blue—that is known



to form after Zyklon B is used. In contrast, the sup-
posed death rooms invariably did not show any signs
of Iron Blue that results from chemical reactions via
Zyklon B.

Under normal conditions, when Zyklon B is re-
leased and comes into contact with air, it takes approx-
imately two hours for its contents to fully be ex-
hausted. But so-called holocaust witnesses insisted that

after only 5-15
minutes  Zyklon
B  asphyxiated
hundreds of
Jews, whereupon
guards  entered
the room and
dragged out the
corpses—all the
while these poi-
sonous  gasses
continued to be
released into the

air.

Photographs
from  Kremato-
rium 1 at

Auschwitz show
a flimsy door
that, we’re told,
actually led to one of the gas chambers. Yet, this door
Is not airtight, not constructed with any sturdiness, and
is outfitted with a keyhole. There’s even a glazed win-
dow, and the door opened inward. If hundreds or thou-
sands of corpses lay haphazardly inside this room, how



could guards have entered, especially when those in-
side would naturally have gravitated toward the only
exit, i.e. this noticeably flimsy door?

On the contrary, gas chamber doors used to lock-in

American prisoners that were executed (i.e., capital
punishment) during the 1950s-’70s were constructed
of especially
strong metal
that sealed
airtight like a
vault to pre-
vent the es-
cape of toxic
fumes. Such a
scenario  ob-
viously makes
perfect sense.
So, to see these doors in comparison to the feeble ones
at Auschwitz is startling, and their obvious differences
are quite telling. None of the exhibits at Auschwitz,
Birkenau and Majdanek reveals airtight doors or any
semblance of proper ventilation systems compatible
with the exhaust of Zyklon B after alleged victims
were gassed.

At a bare minimum, it takes 20 hours to ventilate a
room of Zyklon B, and only then when expert techni-
cians monitor this highly complex process. Yet holo-
caust historians claim that mass murders took place at
a helter-skelter pace with corpses and new victims be-
ing disposed of and ushered into these chambers at
breakneck speed. To kill six million Jews, their effi-
ciency would have had to exceed the 100 percent level.



As alluded to earlier, the primary reason for Zyklon
B’s use was to combat a scourge known as typhus that
was transmitted via fleas, rodents and lice. Typhus oc-
curred when large numbers of people lived in cramped,
unsanitary quarters. To eradicate this outbreak of ver-
min, especially among soldiers, prisoners and workers,
the gas Zyklon B was utilized in special debusing
quarters.

Because lice often hide in human hair, Jews, as
well as other captives, had their heads shaved in order
to improve the hygienic process’s effectiveness. Fur-
ther, nearly everyone in Germany had their personal
belongings treated with Zyklon B, including sailors,
laborers, those in hospitals, SS soldiers and everyday
citizens.,

To prove this crucial point, the German Wehrmacht
possessed countless invoices, especially at work camps
such as Theresienstadt and Oranienburg, where even
holocaust historians admit that no “homicidal gass-
Ings” occurred.

At this time, we must ask: Why would these facili-
ties—where absolutely no accusations of mass murder
were ever levied—be using as much Zyklon B as
camps such as Auschwitz? Quite simply, because it
had never been intended to eradicate Jews, but instead
to delouse them, and just about everyone else in Ger-
many and other Axis-occupied areas.

Princeton University’s Dr. Amo Mayer called the
typhus epidemic *“devastating,” while Jean-Claude
Pressac referred to it as “catastrophic.” Pressac further
explained, “Everything had to be deloused immediate-
ly: personal effects, barracks, buildings and work



ships. Tons of Zyklon B was needed to save the
camps.”

As previously noted, Zyklon B is a slow-acting
agent that takes hours to be fully released. If the Nazis
had wanted to exterminate Jews at lightning speed,
there were countless other poisonous chemicals that
would have been inordinately more efficient. Or, why
not simply put a bullet into their 1"eads instead of sup-
posedly corralling hundreds of hysterical Jews into ti-
ny, cramped rooms?

Zyklon B protected the Jews from disease on a
large scale. It kept them alive and healthy. It was, in
essence, their salvation and preserved their lives from
death at the hands of a typhus epidemic. Krakow’s In-
stitute of Forensic Research analyzed Auschwitz’s de-
lousing chambers and boldly reported, “The result is a
confirmation of the fact that in these rooms of Block 3,
preparations of hydrogen cyanide such as in Zyklon B
were used for disinfection.”

To reiterate an earlier point, the National Archives
in Washington, D.C. confirm that equal case lots (six
each) of Zyklon B were shipped to Auschwitz in Pol-
and and the Oranienburg camp in Germany. Again, not
a single historian has-eVer claimed that even one homi-
cidal gassing occurred at Oranienburg. So, why would
they receive the exact same amount of Zyklon B as
Auschwitz, where mass murders supposedly transpired
by the millions?

Because no exterminations via poison took place at
Auschwitz, or anywhere else for that matter at Nazi
hands, Zyklon B was an insecticide that German
records clearly identified as being used to delouse
clothes, mattresses and personal items. German



records also chronicle the purchase of gassing equip-
ment needed to construct disinfecting chambers, not
extermination rooms.

Now, if anyone actually inspected the various work
camps, they’d quickly realize that the delousing cham-
bers (i.e., for clothes, bedding etc.) were much too
small to slaughter Jews by the thousands. These disin-
fection rooms—as opposed to fake death quarters—
were sealed airtight before green cans containing Zyk-
lon B were emptied inside them.

Interestingly, prior to WW 1I, Zyklon B had been
sold on the world market as, of all things, a premier
insecticide used for pest control; exactly like its func-
tion inside the German-controlled work camps. Simi-
larly, the bureaucratic entity inside Germany’s gov-
ernment that ordered Zyklon B was named the Referat
fur Schadlingsbekampfung. Translated, these words
mean Pest Control Office.

To continue this line of reasoning, Allied forces,

including the U.S., also suffered a lice/typhus outbreak
during the war. But instead of using Zyklon B as the
Germans did, they implemented a new chemical called
DDT.
" To illustrate how ludicrous the “Zyklon B as an
agent of mass extermination” story is, all one needs to
do is examine the supposed gas chamber at Majdanek
where photos actually show unbarred windows where
Jews were allegedly killed. Similarly, the fumigation
rooms at Auschwitz are never shown to visitors during
their tours.

Yes, at Auschwitz, special buildings specifically
designed to delouse clothes and mattresses still stand.
Inside them during WW Il were machines that intro-



duced and circulated Zyklon B, along with exhaust
fans that then safely removed the toxic gasses once
fumigations had ended.

Finally, let’s be clear: Dr. William Lindsey, an es-
teemed chemist, stated definitively that Zyklon B was
used to not only sustain the lives of Jewish workers,
but that SS members were also subjected to the Zyklon
B debusing process. Zyklon B was never, ever used to
end human life. Rather, it protected people, maintained
their health, and prevented them from dying horrible
deaths from typhus.



ALLIED BOMBINGS LEAD TO THE
DEATH OF JEWS (AND OTHER
WORKERS), NOT A SYSTEMATIC

EXECUTION CAMPAIGN BY NAZIS

Did Jews perish during WW 11? Unequivocally,
yes. Did they die inside homicidal death camps? Une-
quivocally, the answer is no. The primary cause of
most deaths derived from a massive typhus epidemic
that resulted from an inordinate number of people liv-
ing in unsanitary conditions.

The big question is: why did so many individuals at
Nazi work camps perish, especially during the final
months of WW 11?7 Quite simply, the Allied nations
unleashed such an extraordinary onslaught against the
Germans that supply lines were literally erased. As
such, food, medicine and every other necessity for
human survival never made it to installations such as
Auschwitz.

Needless
to say, Jews—
as well as
every  other
race or group
of people re-
siding there—
died of starva-
tion or dis-
ease. In addi-
tion, Germans



also perished for the very same reason. A 1948 Red
Cross report confirmed this state of collapse. “In the
chaotic condition of Germany after the invasion during
the final months of the war, the camps received no
food supplies at all, and starvation claimed an increas-
ing number of victims.”
To support this stance, a holocaust historian of the
Jewish faith named Amo
Mayer revealed in his

1988 book Why Did the !

Heavens Not Darken,
“Sources for the study of
gas chambers are at once
rare and unreliable.”

To combat massive
doses of propaganda, as-
tute investigators have
presented a more accurate
version of events that
stands in stark contrast to
an existing plethora of
lies. For instance, photos

of the Bergen-Belsen camp in Germany show scores of
emaciated prisoners living in horrific conditions. His-
torians then put forward the false notion that every
person residing in all of these camps endured such
hardships.

However, up until the final few months of WW I,
such scenes were completely atypical of these work
installations. They only deteriorated into an utter state
of death after Americans and Brits wiped away nearly
every supply line.



Of course, in war, the intended outcome is victory,
so the Allies merely did what they deemed necessary
to win. Via their widespread saturation bombings
against nearly every major city in Germany, the entire
logistical infrastructure broke down. Food trucks
couldn’t get through, nor could ambulances, while rail
transport had been obliterated.

So, let’s be clear: Jews, Germans, Christians, gyp-
sies, homosexuals and many other prisoners in these
work camps died not from a deliberate extermination
campaign, but from typhus, starvation and disease
caused by the Allied bombing onslaught.

Now, if the Germans intended to obliterate as many
Jews as humanly possible—as quickly as possible—
they never would have survived long enough to starve
and walk around like emaciated skeletons. They simp-
ly would have been shot in the head, case closed.

But since many did starve, it reinforces the notion
that food wasn’t reaching these camps due to supply
lines being cut. lronically, since so many inmates were
crammed together in unsanitary conditions, if more

Zyklon B
had been on
hand, more
Jews (and

everyone
else) could
have poten-
tially  sur-
vived.

Yet, as
workers ex-
pired at an



alarming rate, the Nazis didn’t even remotely possess
enough resources to bury or cremate the disease-
addled corpses. This situation then opened the door for
exploitation on a tremendous scale.

Namely, gruesome photographs taken of these
emaciated bodies piled in mounds were used to suppo-
sedly prove that Nazis exterminated Jews in their con-
centration camps.

None, however, was murdered, and all of them we-
ren’t Jews. The dead were of all nationalities, includ-
ing Germans, and they perished due to diarrhea, dysen-
tery, typhoid and a lack of food.

The lies
continued be-
cause  when
holocaust his-
torians  used
so-called evi-
dence of Nazi
atrocities  at
Belsen,

Buchenwald

or Dachau, Dresden firebombing
most photos of

dead bodies stacked in piles were taken after the actual
holocaust bombing of Dresden—a German city—by
Allied forces on Feb. 13-14, 1945. Other photographed
corpses were compiled from the firebombed cities of
Hamburg and Cologne. None of these bodies were
Jewish concentration camp victims.

Dresden was hardly an industrial city, and instead
harbored countless refugees from the war that had no-



where else to go. Dresden posed no threat whatsoever
to the Allies, yet it still faced the genocidal extermina-
tion of 135,000 innocent citizens.

At any rate, few are aware that scores of workers
were actually liberated from camps such as Belsen and
Dachau. News reporters filmed these individuals strol-
ling from places like Buchenwald after Allied forces
showed up. The prisoners were so overjoyed that they
applauded, laughed and celebrated.

Included among the freed were Jews. Plus, when
Allied doctors performed autopsies on the deceased at
these camps, they found that the primary cause of
death was disease. Medical technicians didn’t release
even one autopsy where those stacked in piles had
been killed via gassing.

In all, horror films of supposed Jewish corpses
piled in mounds were actually part of an extensive
propaganda campaign used to mislead the world. At
Dresden following the extensive air raids, German
men, women and children were stacked in heaps of
400 or 500 bodies and then set ablaze. These images
were later used to “prove” that Jews had been extermi-
nated by atrocious Nazi killers.

The entire premise is an outright example of fa-
kery. The Jews usurped these film reels and pictures
and then posted them in museums to depict Germany’s
gruesome genocidal inhumanity. If there was any ac-
tual holocaust during WW I, it occurred in Dresden,
not any concentration camp.



AUSCHWITZ (part one)

In late 1940, a prisoner-intensive work complex
named Auschwitz was established in central Poland.
Beginning in 1942 until mid-1944, a significant num-
ber of Jews were transported to tljis camp, which in
actuality was a vast industrial center used to supply the
Nazi war machine. Film footage from that time clearly
shows a sprawling factory setting where tens of thou-
sands of people labored. Also, these films depict acres

of living quarters.

Why, if millions of Jews were to be exterminated,

Auschwitz

Arbeit Macht Frei - “Work Will Make
You Free”

would  they  be
housed in these bar-
racks? The answer
is simple: the Jews
were  housed at
Auschwitz so that
they could work in
this industrial center
where shipments of
coal were trans-
formed into gasoline
to support the Ger-
man war economy.
Inarguably, the
Germans maintained
meticulous records
with scores of doc-
uments relating to
their  industrializa-



tion efforts at Auschwitz. So, researchers have unco-
vered invoices for manufacturing, production, logistics
and materials. But there has yet to be a single purchase
order, blueprint, memo, contract or photograph of a
single gas chamber (in operation) or the items needed
to keep them intact. Admittedly, crematoriums and
mortuaries did exist at Auschwitz, but they were used
to dispose of sick and elderly inmates that perished
during their stay. It goes without saying that the SS
didn’t possess enough manpower to dig graves for
every person that died during the war’s most intense
moments. These installations also doubled as air raid
shelters in times of intense Allied bombings.

Another curious fact is that up to 200,000 inmates
at Auschwitz were relocated via train to other installa-
tions in Poland or Germany. Involved in these numbers
were Anne Frank and Ehe Wiesel.

From the summer to fall, 1944, anywhere up to
23,000 women of Jewish descent were transferred
from Auschwitz to a camp named Stuffhof. Let’s
pause for a moment and ask two pressing questions.
One, if sadistic mass murdering Nazis intended to kill
six million Jews, why would they be tying up valuable
resources moving Jews from one locale to another?
Secondly, if Auschwitz were a mass extermination
center, why relocate Jews who were supposedly aware
of these atrocities to other camps where they could
inform the authorities or fellow Jews? If Auschwitz
attained the status of being the apex of Jewish
slaughterhouses, why were so many Jews moved out of
there instead of instantly killed?



Still, despite these logical arguments, official holo-
caust historians claim that beginning in early 1942,
Nazis systematically gassed countless Jews in crema-
toria at Auschwitz. On Apr. 18, 1945 The New York
Times reported that four million Jews had been exter-
minated at this locale alone. But then, on Jan. 26, 1995
both The New York Times and The Washington Post
revealed that; at

best, a total of 15 POIana IOWE IS

million total

functions reserved

by the Germans for Auschwitz-Birkenau was to house
Jews who were incapable of working. Grouped in this
category were also the elderly and sick.

The numbers bear out this reality. On Sept. 4, 1943
the Nazi SS Economic and Administrative Main Office
issued a report stating that of the 25,000 Jewish detai-
nees at Auschwitz, approximately 86 percent were in-
capable of working. That means only 3,581 were fit for
labor.

The following year, on Apr. 5, 1944 the director of
Auschwitz’s concentration camp, Otto Pohl, dis-
patched a report to Heinrich Himmler with these fig-
ures:



Total inmates 67,000

Disabled-hospitalized 18,000
Birkenau residents 36,000
Unable to work 15,000

Obviously, how do we get from 67,000 total pris-

oners in 1944 to an astounding four million Jews sup-
posedly exterminated at Auschwitz? Jewish historian
and Princeton history professor Amo Mayer put this
matter into perspective via a 1988 white paper entitled
Why Did the Heavens Not Darken: The Final Solu-
tion” in History. In this study, Mayer stated that at
Auschwitz from 1942 to 1945, more Jews perished
from natural causes than any other factor.
* The reason why is that up until its supply lines
were eradicated by Allied bombing campaigns near
war’s end, Auschwitz provided quite a number of
amenities, comforts and outright luxuries to those be-
ing held.

An overview of what actually existed at Auschwitz
is included below:

Auschwitz swimming pool



*A concert auditorium

* Dance halls

» Swimming pool

e Library

* Non-denominational church where marriages

were performed

* Post office

* Soccer fields

* Movie theaters

* Brothel for the workers

* Art centers

» Daycare centers for mothers and babies

» State-of-the-art kitchen

 Plus, there were over 100 different concentration
camp currencies issued to workers at facilities such as
Auschwitz, Westerbrook, Ravensbruck, Dachau, Bu-
chenwald and Oranienburg.

Obviously, if Auschwitz were a highly efficient
death factory, why would the workers get paid in ac-
tual camp coupons or “scrip” that they could use at on-
site stores? In addition, critics complain that all of the
above luxuries were provided only to German workers
and Nazi guards.

Yet, a Jewish worker-inmate at Auschwitz, Marc
Klein, who later became a professor at the University
of Strasbourg Medical School, admitted, “On Sunday
afternoon, there were soccer, basketball and water polo
matches to the ardent cheers of spectators ... the SS
administrators allowed regular amusements for the
prisoners.”



These pastimes included an orchestra, cabaret and
film theaters. If the Nazis were slaying Jews non-stop
at the Auschwitz slaughterhouse, why provide so many
creature comforts for the detainees, many of whom
were Jewish?

Here’s another interesting point. Again, the source
is Jewish holocaust historian Arno Mayer in his book
Why Did the Heavens Not Darken. “Birkenau was the
site of Auschwitz’s main medical facility and quaran-
tine center.”

The Auschwitz Museum has records verifying that
from June 1942 until June 1943, 15,705 prisoners, a
large percentage of them Jewish, were the recipients of
medical care at an Auschwitz camp called Monowitz.

To reiterate using simple logic, if the Nazis wanted
nothing but to exterminate Jews, why were they also
treating them in Auschwitz hospitals? Are we to be-
lieve the Germans wanted to make sure theyfelt better
before gassing them, or that they only wanted to mur-
der healthy Jews, not sick ones? Plus, since Auschwitz
also maintained a quarantine center, are we to assume
that prisoners were deloused
prior to being shoved into
ovens . . . that they didn’t want
to kill Jews infected with lice?

To move this line of rea-
soning forward, a Jewish re-
searcher named David Cole
visited Auschwitz in 1992 and
interviewed, on film, the senior
curator and director of archives
of Auschwitz’s State Museum,

Dr. Franciszek Plpel’. David Cole, who was attacked

by Jewish assailants after a
1992 revisionist conference at
the University of California in

Los Angeles



During these historic talks, Piper admitted—for the
entire world to see and hear—that the alleged gas
chambers at this facility were constructed after WW I

by the Soviets. Piper also
dropped a number of other
bombshells:

e During WW I, what
had originally been an air
raid shelter was transformed
into what the Jews later
called gas chambers. These
air raid bunkers helped
shield workers from any

potential Allied bomber planes.

» To accommodate the transformation of these air
raid bunkers, the inside walls of five smaller rooms,
including a bathroom, were removed to give the ap-
pearance that it was a much larger “death chamber.”

* Although visitors are told that Auschwitz has re-
mained in its original condition and that no walls had
been knocked down, in actuality dramatic changes had
been made.

* Aerial photos snapped during WW Il by Allied
forces

showed

no holes

in  the

ceilings

of any

“exter-

mination

centers”

Allied aerialphoto ofSobibor



at Auschwitz. Piper disclosed that four holes in the
ceiling of Krema I—where Zyklon B was supposedly
dropped in to kill Jews—were
drilled after WW II.
» The smokestack at Cremato-
rium | was a reconstruction follow-
ing the war and is not even con-
nected as a form of exhaust to any
of the buildings where ovens were
allegedly used. This chimney at
-Birkenau served as a powerful
symbol of the Nazis vicious-
ness . . . except, of course, it Crematoria 1 smokestack that
never existed until being built was built after World War Il
years later. ended and is not gve.n connected
» Another Auschwitz tour to any buildings
guide and supervisor admitted to Cole that the ceiling
holes were not original. Piper concurred during this
documentary that the eradicated walls and induction
chimney were fabricated for the benefit of tourists to
“prove” Adolf Hitler’s “Final Solution.”
* The so-called “white cottage” at Auschwitz’s Bir-
kenau complex was also renovated to give the appear-
ance of being a gas chamber.

Adding support to Cole’s claims is Robert Jan vam
Pelt, whose 1996 investigations at AusChwitzcon-
firmed that many aspects of the “gas chambers” were
erected by Poland’s communist government following
the war as a method of impressing (or indoctrinating)
tourists.

Similarly, in a Nov. 29, 1993 edition of England’s
Guardian newspaper, Dr. David Cesarani, director of



London’s Weiner Library, likewise admitted that so-
called gas chambers were constructed in 1948—three
years after WW Il. He added that another crematorium
chimney, built at the same time, was merely “symbol-
Ic” in nature and not functional.

Another German chemist, Germar Rudolf, demon-
strated that holes drilled into the ceiling at Cremato-
rium Il were elaborate hoaxes use4 to trick visitors into
imagining that Zyklon B capsules were dropped into
massive death chambers to mass murder Jews. Yet, it’s
all an illusion, and not a very well crafted one at that.

If anyone is still not convinced, in Jan. 1995 the es-
teemed French magazine L Express agreed that “eve-
rything about this ‘gas chamber’ [at Auschwitz] is
false” and that it was nothing more than a postwar fa-
brication.

To show how far the lies concerning Auschwitz
stretched, an ally of premier holocaust hoaxer Deborah
Lipstadt—Prof. Robert Jan van Pelt—testified, “99
percent of what we know about Auschwitz we do not
actually have the physical evidence to prove.”

99 percent. Thus, to replace proof, holocaust histo-
rians have relied on eyewitness, postwar “confes-
sions.” Let’s examine some of these ludicrous revela-
tions.

o Its already been established that the famous
Auschwitz chimney was constructed after WW II. Yet,
SS guard Henryk Tauber lied by playing the sympathy
card when testifying, “The especially high flames
shooting out of the chimneys were to attract the atten-
tion of pilots.”



» Supposed prisoner Harry Gross claimed that he
was held at Auschwitz for six and a half years. How-
wer, Auschwitz only operated from late 1941 to the
first month of 194T7 . . a total of little more than three
years. A

* Photos in Israel’s Beit Lohamei Hagetaot museum
archives allegedly depict corpses piled in mounds at

Dresden corpses, notfrom ‘concentration camp ” exterminations

Auschwitz. But after further research, it was discov-
ered that the pictures were taken after the horrific
Dresden fire-bombings.

» Auschwitz occupant Szlama Dragon described
how Jews were crepited in huge 10-foot-deep ditches \
dug by the Nazis"The only problem: a human body
cannot be cremated in a ditch due to its inability to
reach the extremely high temperatures required, as
Well as its inherent lack of an adequate oxygen supply.
Bodies may be singed or charred, but it’s physically
impossible to reduce them to ashes in a ditch. Had
Dragon said that open pyres were utilized for crema-



tion, the story would be believable, but the ditch fairy-
tale is preposterous, especially since swampland sur-
rounded Auschwitz and the water table sat four feet
below ground level. A 10-foot deep pit is impossible
because they would have hit water at four feet.

* An initial story circulating among holocaust fa-
bricators involved trucks backing up to death rooms
filled with Jews and filling them with carbon monox-
ide from their exhausts. When people realized the
sheer lunacy of this method, it was quietly dismissed.

* Dr. Rudolf Vrba perfunctorily asserted that he
personally saw Heinrich Himmler gazing through a
window into the gas chambers to watch Jews writhing
in pain and dying. Yet, when questioned in court, he
backtracked and said he actually didn’t witness Himm-
ler himself, but heard it through second- and third-
hand accounts.

* At the Nuremberg Trials, U.S. Atty. Robert Jack-
son introduced tes-
timony that the Na-
zis used a special
vaporization tech-
nique which imme-
diately killed
20,000 Jews at a
time and left no
remnants what-
soever. No historian on any side of this debate accepts
such an insane tale.

* Similarly, on Dec. .5 1945 a communist judge at
the Nuremberg Trials directed “Accusation No. 6”
against a man on trial named Hans Frank for allegedly
using the following tactic: “A large boiler for the pro-



duction of super-heated steam was injected into the
interior of the rooms. The doors are closed hermetical-
ly and the long asphyxiation of the victims by the
steam begins. At the start, screams came from inside,
they die down slowly; after 15 minutes the executions
are completed.” Again, after being thoroughly de-
bunked, holocaust historians abruptly swept this story
under the rug.

» Henryk Tauber again perjured himself on the
stand with this whopper about how the Nazis cremated
Jews without using anyfuel. “When one cremation fol-
lowed another, the ovens used embers given off during
the cremation as fuel. For this reason, we usually ex-
tinguished the fire during the cremation of fat bodies.”
Strangely, hasn’t everyone been told that Nazis starved
the Jews, so where did all these fat prisoners originate?
Plus, the human body is made up of 60 percent water.
Bodies can’t bum by themselves, and they certainly
can’t be used to cremate other bodies.

» The Simon Wiesenthal Center has photos depict-
ing prisoners at Auschwitz with an adjoining caption:
“As these prisoners were being processed for slave la-
bor, many of their friends and families were being
gassed and burned in ovens in the crematoria. The
smoke can be seen in the background.”

X Except, experts proved that these pictures were air-
brushed adding in the smoke at a later time. Cremato-
ria don’t produce smoke or flames.

After being embarrassed by this mse, the Wiesen-
thal Center deleted all references to smoke. After the
controversy persisted, they were then forced to remove
the altered photo and replace it with the original . . .
the one showing no smoke.



Wiesenthal Center s altered Original photo without any
photo with “smoke” airbrushed smoke emittedfrom
into the scene “crematoria”

* Nazi SS driver Richard Boerk deceived jurors at
Frankfurt’s Auschwitz trial that ran from 1963 to 1965
by proclaiming that after Jews were Kkilled in gas
chambers, “The door was opened and we could still
see a blue vapor floating over a gigantic pile of bo-
dies.” However, if Zyklon B were used—as is the offi-
cial story—the hydrocyanide gasses emitted from it
would be colorless. It’s impossible for any type of blue
vapors to exist.

» Referring to themselves as “eyewitnesses,” So-
viets told the Russian newspaper Pravda on Feb. 2,
1945 that Nazis were methodically executing Jews
with “an electric conveyor belt on which hundreds of
persons could be electrocuted simultaneously and then
moved into furnaces. They were burned almost instant-
ly, producing fertilizer for nearby cabbage fields.”
Needless to say, this account was buried as being
another fanciful deception.



» By 1958, famed holocaust celebrity Elie Wiesel
wrote that he actually saw
Germans burning Jews alive.
“Not far from us blazed flames
from a pit, gigantic flames.
They were burning something.
A lorry [truck] drove up to the
pit and dumped something into
it. They were small children.
Babies! Yes, | had seen it with
my own eyes!”

Oddly enough, in his earlier
book entitled La Nuit that detailed his eight months at
Auschwitz, Wiesel didn’t make a single mention of gas
chambers being used at this facility. Further, even the
most ardent holocaust fanatics have never stated that
Nazis burned still-living Jews in pits of fire.

However, Jewish religious folklore does contain

stories of Jewish parents sacrificing their children in
huge pits of fire to the god Moloch.

Jewish parents throwing
their infant children into
pits offlame as sacrifices

to their god Moloch



AUSCHWITZ (part two)

The issue of Auschwitz’s “death chambers” must
be addressed once again. First of all, the doors suppo-

Entrance to supposed Auschwitz
“death chamber” complete withflimsy
wooden door, aglass panel, and noth-

ing to hermetically seal the room

sedly used to lock prison-
ers in their execution
rooms were so flimsy as to
be laughable. Photos show
these doors being made of
wood and incapable of be-
ing hermetically sealed.
As such, with no gaskets,
Zyklon B would have na-
turally seeped out, killing
the SS guards. Worse,
there are gaps between the
floors of these rooms and
the bottoms of the doors,
therefore allowing any
gasses to quickly escape.
Other photos clearly re-
veal windows on the doors

made of a single pane of glass. Had prisoners despe-
rate for their lives been inside, they obviously would
have smashed these windows within seconds.

Plus, the doors opened inward. If piles of corpses
were lying inside, wouldn’t the Germans design doors
that opened outward so they could get to the bodies for

disposal?



AUSCHWITZ:
Technique and operation
ofthegas chambers

h
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In their original state prior to being reconstructed,
these “death chambers” were actually shower units that
possessed water pipes running along their ceilings. A
holocaust historian named Jean-Claude Pressac con-
curred in his 1989 book Auschwitz: Technique and
Operation of Gas Chambers that a door on display at
Majdanek used to contain Jews was, in actuality, of a
“non-homicidal variety” . . . i.e. it’s purpose was solely
to seal a room used to delouse clothing.

Further, Auschwitz’s original design plans still ex-
ist, and none of them depict what could be called “gas
chambers.” Moreover, these plans—again, original and
unaltered—did not contain provisions for exhaust units
to dispense of any supposed poisonous gasses. Lastly,
no crematoria smokestacks ever existed in the design
plans or construction at Auschwitz. There weren’t any
whatsoever. All of these “show pieces” were added
later for the benefit of
museum visitors.

Then there’s the
matter of sheer num-
bers. ’Historians de-
mand that anywhere
upwards of 600-800
Jews were simulta-

Krema | “gas chamber”. originally
an air raid shelter . after renovations



neously crammed into the Krema | gas chamber. How-
ever, with a mere floor space of 844 square feet, at the
very most 100 people could fit into this area. jConsidef~
ing the obvious struggle under such perilous circums-
tances, quite possibly only 40-50 people could be cor-
ralled at a time before total bedlam resulted.

At any rate, the next matter at hand is the subject of
cremation. Morticians agree that it#requires approx-
imately 60-70 minutes—using up-to-date technolo-
gy—to adequately cremate a human body. Now, if we
buy the version of events provided by holocaust histo-
rians—namely, that ovens at Auschwitz were used for,
at best, a total of 600 days—Ilet’s do some mathemat-
ics. If every supposed oven at Auschwitz ran non-stop
except for maintenance and the removal of ashes, the
TOTAL number of bodies that could have been cre-
mated was 374,000.
jfi Repeat: 374,000. Now, how do we go from this
"figure to the four million total that stood for decades?
A Canadian man named lvan Lagace, who managed a
crematory, revealed during the Apr. 1988 Ernst Ziindel
trial that the Auschwitz cremation tale was “preposter-
ous” and “beyond the realm of reality.” He added that
allegations regarding the incineration of 10,000-20,000
Jews every day was “technically impossible.”

If all the supposed ovens at Auschwitz had worked
non-stop with no downtime whatsoever, it would have
taken until 1972 to incinerate four million bodies.

On that note, if four million bodies had been cre-
mated, it would result in 15,000 tons of ashes. In
pounds, that equals 30 million pounds of ashes. There
has never been one photograph showing these moun-
tains of ash that would have been produced.



In addition, imagine how many tons of coal would
have been necessary to cremate four million Jews. It
would require trains traveling around the clock to
Auschwitz delivering the coal needed to cremate four
million Jews. But there are no Allied reconnaissance
photos in existence revealing huge supplies of coal
(millions and millions of them) at Auschwitz. Nor do
German records support any such massive deliveries to

CAuschWitz in regard to this much coal. Rather, the Na-
-zis actually needed coal to fuel their war machine, not
incinerate Jews.

n In all, two researchers—Carlo Mattogno and Fran-
co Deana—estimated that at the very most, 162,000
bodies of the sick and elderly were cremated at

; Auschwitz after they died natural deaths.
A Despite this indisputable arithmetic, a Jewish
woman named Kitty Hart authored a book entitled Re-
turn to Auschwitz. In this tome she stated, “Working
around the clock, the four units together could dispose
of about 18,000 bodies every 24 hours, while the open
pits coped with a further 8,000 in the same period.”

Using Ms. Hart’s astounding calculations, the Na-
zis could have murdered six million Jews in approx-
imately eight months. Has anyone ever stopped to ana-
lyze the insanity of these outrageous claims?

Fortunately, a few individuals have stepped
forward to speak the truth on this matter. A Jewish
woman named Olga Wormser-Migot penned a book in
1968 published by the Presses Universitaires de
France that proclaimed, “Auschwitz I, which was to
remain the model camp and simultaneously the admin-
istrative center, had no gas chamber.”



A few other facts: Historian Douglas Reed in The
Controversy of Zion stated that the Germans and Japa-
nese killed—in total—
approximately 850,000
soldiers during WW 1.
Plus, Oskar Schindler’s
widow has gone on the
record saying that Ste-
ven Spielberg’s film
Schindlers List is rife/
with lies. Then, by thel
time Russians reached
Auschwitz in 1945, on-
ly about 11,000 in-
mates remained at this
decimated facility.
Most importantly of
all, Theis Christopher-
son—who spent nearly
a year at Auschwitz—wrote, “1was in Auschwitz from
Jan. 1944 until Dec. 1944. After the war | heard about
the mass murders [that] were supposedly perpetrated
by the SS against Jewish prisoners, and | was perfectly
astonished. Despite all the evidence of witnesses, all
the newspaper reports and radio broadcasts, | still do
not believe today in these horrible deeds. | have said
this many times and in many places.”

Christopherson continued, “During the whole of
my time at Auschwitz, | never observed the slightest
evidence of mass gassings. Moreover, the odor of
burning flesh that is often said to have hung over the
camp is a downright falsehood.”



To simplify this matter, it would help if Jewish his-
torians merely released a master list of the six million
Jews who were supposedly executed by Nazis in con-
centration camps. But, such a list does not exist even
though various individuals have tried to compile one
over the years. The major problem is: the grand total
never came anywhere near six million, and those who
did perish never did so inside ovens or gas chambers.

Yet, grossly deceptive exaggerations have flou-
rished for decades. Despite the sacred Kabalistic figure
of six million being permanently fixed in stone, this
outlandish fairytale number has been significantly
eroded in recent times.

Originally, a film entitled Nuit et Brouillard
claimed that a whopping nine million Jews were killed
in WW II. Other sources placed the totals at eight mil-
lion, seven million, then finally six million. So, already
we’ve reduced the grand sum by a third, from nine
million to six million.

At the bogus Nuremberg Tribunal, an official fig-
ure of four million
was established as
the total number
of Jews slaugh-
tered at Ausch-
witz. But then,
this  figure for
Auschwitz  kept
dropping.

Nuremberg Tribunal « Jewish movie
director Claude Lanzmann set the bar at 3.5 million;



* SS commandant Rudolf Hoess testified at Nu-
remberg that three million Jews were murdered;

* Jewish prisoner Rudolf Vrba diminished it to 2.5
million;

* Lucy Dawidowicz reduced it down to two mil-
lion;

 Finally, Jewish holocaust historian and author
Yehuda Bauer furthered the declineto barely over one
millionY

Incidentally, other German camps similarly expe-
rienced dramatic reductions in death totals. For exam-
ple, in 1946 it was claimed that over 238,000 Jews
were murdered at Dachau. Today, that figure is barely
over 20,000.

Yet, up until 1990, a

plaque at Auschwitz POUR MILLION
read: “Four million . fPOPLE SUFFERED
people suffered and died - AP IR S
here at the hands of the OF THE NAH
Nazi murderers between MURDERERS

the years 1940 and BETWEEN THE YEARS
1945.” 1940 AND 194S

But then, miracu-
lously, in 1990 a new . _ :
Original Auschwitz plaque with the
plaque was erected at allegedfour million death count



Auschwitz with this inscription: “May this place where
the Nazis assassinated 1,500,000 men, women and
children, a majority of them Jews from diverse Euro-
pean countries, be forever for mankind a cry of despair
and of warning.”

Wait a second. The Auschwitz death toll—in the
snap of a finger—plummeted from four million to 15
million overnight. That’s a reduction of 2.5 million.

So, how does the mythical six million remain?
Shouldn’t this figure—logically—also be immediately
slashed by 2.5 million to reflect Auschwitz’s admis-
sion? Shouldn’t it correspond to reality?

But did a million individuals—Jews and non-
Jews—die at Auschwitz, or was the sum even lower?
A 1995 report entitled The Changing Face of Holo-
caust Memory released by the American Jewish Com-
mittee clearly stated, “The figure of four million was
as wrong as it was round, arrived at by a combination
of the camp’s commandant’s self-aggrandizing exag-
gerations, Poles’ perceptions of their great losses, and
the Soviet occupiers’ desire to create socialist mar-
tyrs.”

Where did these “lost” 2.5 million Jews go? How
could such an enormous quantity of people simply
“poof’away like chalk from a blackboard? Even more
startling are various individuals who’ve weighed in
with starkly lower totals.

« Jewish historian Raul Hilberg set his best estimate
regarding the total deaths of all Jews during WW 1l at
nearly 897,000.

» A Swiss publication called Die Tat of Zurich con-
ducted a survey rooted in International Red Cross find-



ings and published them on Jan. 19, 1955. They fixed
the number of individuals “who died in prisons and
concentration camps between 1939 and 1945 at
300.000, not all of whom were Jews, and this figure
seems the most agcurate assessment.”

* Arthur Butz, author of The Hoax of the Twentieth
Century, cc¢ncluded that
less than half a million
people in all died in Ger-
man concentration camps
during WW |1, only a small
percentage of whom were
Jewish. He also estimated
the total deaths at Ausch-
witz as being 125,000.

* Author, editor and
analyst Fritjof Meyer wrote
in Osteuropa that anywhere
from 500,000-510,000
prisoners died in concentra-
tion camps, including Jews and non-Jews.

 According to Gerald Reitlinger, author of The Fi-
nal Solution, the total number of registered detainees at
Auschwitz during the entire course of WW Il was
383.000.

e Israel Gutman, author of Anatomy of the Ausch-
witz Death Camp, placed this total at 405,000.

* Franciszek Piper has gone on record as saying
that 197,820 inmates survived Auschwitz. He also
wrote, “When Soviet soldiers liberated the camp in
Jan. 1945, they found documents that confirmed only
100,000 deaths.” /



* At Auschwitz I, on the back wall of Room 6, a
plaque discovered by the German Contemporary His-
torical Educational Trust on June 5, 1985 read: “Dur-
ing the period of this camp’s existence, 405,222 pris-
oners—men, women and children—were entered in
the books. Of this number, around 340,000 persons pe-
rished at Auschwitz and in the other camps.”

» As director of holocaust studies at Jerusalem’s
Hebrew  University, Yehuda
Bauer published an article in
Nov. 1989 admitting that the
four million deaths at Auschwitz
was a “deliberate myth.” The
following year, in July 1990,

Bauer and an Israeli named Yad

Vashem declared at Poland’s

Auschwitz State Museum that,

altogether, possibly one million

of those housed at this camp Yehuda Bauer
died (Jews and non-Jews).

 Charles Biederman—using records from Germa-
ny’s Special Registry Office—confirmed that a total of
373,468 individuals were issued death certificates at
Auschwitz during WW L.

* When the Soviet army finally retrieved records
from Oranienburg in Apr. 1945 they discovered that
the overall death count in every German labor camp
combined over the course of 10 years came to 403,713,
Interestingly, the Russians kept these documents secret
for 45 years. As for Auschwitz alone, the sum came to
73,137 total deaths. Of these, only 38,031 were Jewish.
Most of these deaths resulted from typhus, while the
onsite crematoria were intended to sanitarily dispose of



the corpses so that more people didn’t die from dis-
ease. Moreover, Catholic deaths far outweighed those
of Jewish deaths at Auschwitz.
] The Soviets also refused anyone access to Ausch-
[witz for nearly 10 years after WW II. During that dec-
ade, they engaged in massive renovations to perpetuate
the myth that millions were executed.
* In Auschwitz: The Final CounJ, editor Vivian Bird
placed the number of in-
mate deaths at Auschwitz
at 73,137. Bird assessed
that she arrived at this
figure by inspecting
records directly from this
facility.
* A quote from
Shmuel Krakowsky, di-
rector of research at the
Yad Vashem Museum in
Israel, is particularly in-
teresting. “The four mil-
lion figure was let slip by
Capt. Rudolf Hoess, the
death camp’s Nazi com-
mander. Some have bought it, but it was exaggerated.”
* If approximately 400,000 individuals were regis-
tered at Auschwitz and approximately 150,000 of all
races and nationalities perished there, then 62 percent
of everyone who entered Auschwitz survived.

To conclude this section, the Allies “Enigma”
code-breaker at Bletchley Park decrypted Nazi radio
dispatches by as early as 1943, including all those ori-



ginating from Auschwitz. Not once was there any no-
tation of deaths occurring from gas chambers, hang-
ings or shootings. However, they do mention illness as
leading to the vast majority of deaths.

Now, if the Allies did become aware of millions of
executions in death camps, wouldn’t they have
dropped leaflets all across Europe to inform the citize-
nry, especially in Germany? If an actual occurrence,
these war crimes would have been shouted from the
rooftops far and wide. Also, in 1943 after breaking the
German military code, why weren’t there any reports
of widespread executions broadcast on radios all
across Europe?

Also, in 1979 the CIA released a cache of aerial re-
con photos that were obtained while flying over
Auschwitz-Birkenau. These pictures were repeatedly
taken beginning in 1943 and continued throughout
1944 when—according to holocaust historians—most
of the supposed murders occurred.

But, when viewed, these documents show no lines
of Jews awaiting execution. They also show no spew-
ing chimneys, no huge piles of corpses, no skies black-
ened by smoke from crematoria, no huge ash piles,
burning pyres, or blazing fires from the alleged smoke-
stacks (that didn’t even exist at the time). Nor is there
any photographic evidence of enormous fuel storage
units that would have been a prerequisite to kill mil-
lions of Jews.

Last but not least, if the Allies had seen via their
aircraft thousands, if not millions, of Jews being ex-
ecuted at Auschwitz, why not simply bombard the
Hungarian rail lines leading to this facility so that no
one else could have been transported there? Without



access via train, no more Jews would have been carted
to these supposed concentration camps.



DACHAU & BELSEN

As we’ll learn in a later chapter, even Jewish histo-
rians admit that no death camps existed in Germany
proper. One of the
most infamous  of
these supposed ex-
termination centers—

Dachau—was located
in Germany.

So, why are
people still told of
thousands of Jews being nullified at Dachau? Noted
Nazi hunter Simon Wiesenthal has gone on record as
clarifying that there were no gas chambers at Dachau.

Still, today, when visitors are led through the Da-

chau Museum near Munich,
they’re shown tiny rooms that
were allegedly used as gas
chambers. In actuality, what
they’re being shown are instal-
lations that were either used as
delousing chambers or crema-
toria for already deceased
workers.
V.o« Photographs from the end
of WW Il show the door to
Skull & Crossbones with  one of these rooms depicting a
Daiwer-Cas-Keen Out- g1l & crossbones, along with



the warning: “Danger—Gas—Keep Out.” Now, why
would the Nazis place such warning signs on a door if
they intended to asphyxiate Jews with Zyklon B?
Robert Faurisson has firmly established that no gas
chambers had been constructed by 1945 when Dachau
was liberated. Researcher David McCalden also de-
termined that “fully functioning gas chambers” at Da-
chau were an outright lie. One of the rooms now
shown to visitors was actually a fumigation chamber
used to delouse clothes. The fake showerheads suppo-
sedly used for spraying out poisonous gasses were on-
ly added later, after the end of WW L.
A publication called Our Sunday Visitor dated June
14, 1959 includes a quote from Stephen E. Pinter, who
disclosed, “l was at Dachau for 17 months after the
war, as a U.S. War Dept, attorney, and can state that
there was no gas chamber at Dachau. What was shown
to sightseers there and erroneously described as a gas
chamber was a crematory.”
Similarly, Ber-
gen-Belsen was an
internment camp,
not an extermination
center. A 1945 pho-
tograph  from the
BBC documentary
In the Camps shows
the faces of young
children standing Ber~en-Belsen
behind barbed wire with smiles on each of their faces.
However, as the final months of WW Il wound
down and Germany drew closer to defeat, their supply
lines were cut off, food dwindled, and disease set in.



Typhus reached epidemic levels, and Jews died. Hel-
mut Diwald, a professor at Erlangen University, set the
record straight about those who were supposedly ex-
terminated. “Actually, about 7,000 inmates died during
the period when the camp existed from 1943 to 1945.
Most of them died in the final months of the war as a
result of disease and malnutrition, consequences of the
bombings that had completely disrupted normal deli-
veries of medical supplies and food. The British com-
mander who took control of the camp after the capitu-
lation testified that crimes on a large scale had not tak-
en place at Bergen-Belsen.”

As a propaganda device, however, Belsen became a
masterpiece. When the Brits entered Belsen only
weeks prior to war’s end, they discovered the unburied
bodies and emaciated corpses of those that had recent-
ly starved to death or died of typhus.

Mass graves were only dug after Allied troops had
reached Belsen. None were ever dug by the Germans,
who had lost control because of supply lines being cut.
The Allies proceeded to photograph the dead and those
who were starving and then circulated them around the
world as “proof’ of Belsen being a “concentration
camp” where Jews were exterminated.



Holocaust historians insist that mass graves sur-
rounded the Treblinka labor camp following WW II.
But, when recon photos were analyzed, there was ab-
solutely no evidence that the grounds around this in-
stallation were ever obstructed enough to facilitate the
burial or burning of inordinate numbers of Jewish
prisoners.

Initially, Jewish author Vasily Grossman purported
that three million of his people wefé exterminated at
this “death factory” in little over a year. According to
Grossman, the modes of death were steam chambers
and the use of diesel-powered engines.

Yes, as opposed to gas chambers—which the story
was later changed to—at Nuremberg witnesses said
Jews were actually killed by steaming them to death.



However, a maximum of only 6,000 inmates could be
[ held at the Treblinka camp at any one time.

In addition, others testified that diesel engines
spewing massive amounts of carbon monoxide caused
the deaths of their fellow workers. The major draw-
back of this argument is that diesel engines don’t even
remotely produce enough carbon monoxide to Kill
people except in rare cases. Because diesel engines re-
quire large quantities of oxygen to operate, the use of
carbon monoxide would be quite possibly one of the
least efficient modes of mass murder imaginable. In
essence, these stories are lies.

A few other glaring inconsistencies cast doubt on
the Treblinka account. First, we’re told that the de-
ceased were buried in massive burial pits. But these
supposed sites were located directly next to Treblin-
ka’s water supply, which would have naturally been
contaminated if millions of corpses were laid in the
ground right next to it.

But this little problem is nothing compared to
another whopper. Specifically, in Oct. 1999 an engi-
neer named Richard Krege visited Treblinka to find
tljeJocale of IHese supposed mass graves. Armed with
the same type of ground penetrating radar equipment
that archaeologists now use, Krege couldn’t discover
even a single mass grave at Treblinka.

Naturally, this discovery (or lack thereof) poked a

Amajor hole in the Treblinka deception. So, to cover
their tracks, Vasily Grossman offered an update—that
the notorious Heinrich Himmler traveled to this labor
camp in 1943 and demanded that all the corpses in
these supposed mass graves be dug up and then burned

Vto erase any evidence that three million Jews had been



killed. Furthermore, the bones—approximately 6.6
million pounds of them (or so we’re told)—were then
ground to bits using wooden rollers and metal sheets.

Again, in 1943 WW 1l raged at its most extreme.
Can you imagine how many men would be needed to
dig up three million Jews, pulverize their bones, and
bum them on massive pyres? Only 40 men were ever
employed at any one time at Treblinka. So, how could
they have ever murdered millions of Jews? The Ger-
mans didn’t enjoy the luxury of tens of thousands of
spare men to engage in such a monumental undertak-
ing. They didn’t even have at their disposal that many
prisoners of war to accomplish such a feat. 1t’s imposs-
ible.

As further proof of its profound absurdity, burning
three million Jews would have required so much wood
that evidence of it would have surely survived. But
Germany’s Reichsbahn records have no listings any-
where for large quantities of wood being shipped via
rail to Treblinka.

Moreover, to cremate a body in an open pit neces-
sitates approximately 200 kg of wood. To dig up and
cremate even
800,000  corpses
(the revised num-
ber for Treblinka)
would require at
the very minimum
over 170,000
trees. It would
take nearly 3,000

woodcutters
Working full-time Supposed corpses dug up



shifts to eradicate miles of forestland, chop down all
these trees, trim them to size, transport them, unload
them, and stack them so that massive bonfires could be
lit. It’s an enormous job demanding thousands of men
that weren’t available during this chaotic stretch of the
world’s most destructive war.

Additionally, photos taken during this time reveal
no rampant deforestation near Treblinka. So, again,
why hasn’t anyone ever presented verifiable evidence
of mass graves at this camp, or mountains of ash from
the supposedly exhumed corpses that were burnt? For
that matter, there aren’t even any large-scale distur-
bances of soil that would have surely resulted from
such an ambitious project. Nor were millions of bones
or teeth ever discovered in the grounds surrounding
Treblinka.



THE TRUTH ABOUT CREMATION

To reiterate a few points from the previous chapter,
if nearly 900,000 corpses were cremated at Treblinka
in an open-air pit, by best estimates 350 million
pounds of wood would have beei; needed to accom-
plish this task. As a byproduct of such a process, over
five-and-a-half million pounds of ash would have re-
mained, in addition to more than 20 million teeth.

To conceal the evidence, holocaust historians for-
ward a notion that Germans covered the ashes with a
layer of dirt. But imagine how much topsoil is needed
to conceal five million pounds of ashes. Again, as with
every element of this tale, it stretches credulity to a
laughable extent. Depending on the size of a corpse,
the ashes from an adult weigh up to nine pounds. Do
the mathematics. There would be millions of pounds of
ashes.

In the book Denying History by Michael Shermer,
the following passage conveys a startling truth. “In
Aug. 1944 the Soviet army carried out investigations
on the grounds of Treblinka. And what did the com-
munists find after one week of digging at this site? Not
so much as one single grave—mass or otherwise—and
not so much as one single corpse, skeleton, skull,
complete bone, bone fragment, tooth, ounce of human
ash, bullet or shell casing. The only thing they found
was refuse pits filled with burned and unbumed trash.”

A judge at the Nuremberg Trial, Lukaszkiewicz
Maciejewski, corroborated this report regarding Treb-



linka. “During work on the terrain, | found no mass
graves.”

Yet the Jews purport that 870,000 corpses were bu-
ried in mass graves. Then, they were allegedly ex-
humed and incinerated in massive pyres that rose in
height many feet into the air. Still, no traces of this
carnage can be located anywhere using the most up-
dated modern technology.

Simple common sense also refutes the cremation-
conspiracy theory of this many individuals. At Nurem-
berg, a Jewish witness named Dov Paisikovic testified
that the total amount of time to cremate a body is four
minutes. Another “survivor,” a Polish Jew Henryk
Tauber, went further by stating that at Auschwitz, no
fuel was even necessary to bum their corpses.

The outlandishness continues. At Birkenau, a wit-
ness named Miklos Nyiszli alleged that Nazis were
cremating 20,000 Jews a day. With only 46 “muffles”

(or  openings)

supposedly  at

their  disposal,

the Nazis—

using equipment

that lacks in

comparison to

today’s technol-

ogy—were still

burning bodies

Alleged open-air cremation ofJews in Eastern Europe muItip e times

more efficiently than morticians could during our
present time.

However, as stated earlier, human bodies consist of
60 percent water that, naturally, doesn’t lend itself well



to cremation. In fact, it’s hard to completely make a
corpse disappear. Most experts agree that rather than a
mere four-minutes, the cremation process for a single
body nears the one-hour mark.

Now, if ovens were used to cremate Jews, at least
half the time required for these devices to operate effi-
ciently must be reserved for ash disposal, cleaning and
regular preventive maintenance. In other words, they
cannot run 24 hours a day, seven days a week non-
stop. Also, crematoria absolutely do not belch fire and
smoke, thus confirming that photos at Auschwitz de-
picting such an occurrence were deceptively altered.

One may ask: why, then, did Nazi work camps
have on-site crematoria? The answer: to sanitarily dis-
pose of the elderly, sick and diseased that perished at
these facilities. The Germans desperately didn’t want
any further outbreaks of typhus that would affect their
healthier workers.

Moreover, it’s out of the question that hundreds of
thousands of corpses could be cremated in open pits
because there’s not enough oxygen between bodies to
allow them to be destroyed by the blazes. Fire requires
oxygen, and when bodies are stacked in mounds,
there’s not enough oxygen amid each corpse to fuel the
fire.

Of course, there is also zero evidence of massive
deforestation surrounding Treblinka. So, to compen-
sate, holocaust apologists suggested that motor oil was
used to cremate these people. But researchers delving
into this matter assert that almost five million liters of
oil would have been needed to incinerate up to
100,000 corpses. If nearly 900,000 Jews were suppo-



sedly cremated, we’re now nearing 45 million liters of
fuel needed for this endeavor.
Be that as it may, the Germans lost the war, at least

war.

partially, because they ran out
of fuel. To remind us of this
detail, Hutton Gibson, father of
actor Mel Gibson, told WSNR
radio, “Do you know what it
takes to get rid of a body; to
cremate it? It takes a liter of
petrol and 20 minutes. Now,
six million of them ... the
Germans didn’t have the gas to
do it. That’s why they lost the

Plus, there are no ske-
letal remains, no tons upon
tons of ashes, no recon-
naissance photos of
enormous plumes of smoke
clouding these camps, and
no millions of bones or
teeth (since the cremation
process doesn’t completely
obliterate a corpse, but
merely reduces it to bone
fragments).

Finally, to cremate six million Jews would have
taken multiple decades stretching into the 1970s at the

very least.



CONCENTRATION CAMP
MYTHOLOGY

When considering the supposed six million-person
death count, an impression is given that Nazis were
exterminating Jews in every single concentration camp
that existed. After all, to attain six million requires a
monstrous amount of killing.

As such, numerous “eyewitnesses” have gone on
record saying that camps constructed on German
soil—including Bergen-Belsen, Dachau and Buchen-
wald—possessed homicidal gas chambers. At the Nu-

remberg Trials, Sir Stanley Hartcross, an English pros-
ecutor, characterized the alleged slaughter as a “mass
production” with practically every facility in Germany,



Poland, Austria, Czechoslovakia and Alsace being the
equivalent of a death camp.

But over the years, a transformation has taken
place, with numerous German and Jewish figures of
authority admitting that these postwar claims were
false. For example:

* On Apr. 19, 1960 the director of Munich’s Insti-
tute of Zeitgeschichte [i.e. Institute of Contemporary
History], Dr. Martin Broszat, declared that no mass
gassings ever occurred in the Old Reich (i.e. Germa-
ny). Only a few camps in Poland, according to him,
could have been used for this function.

* In Apr. 1975, famed Nazi hunter Simon Weisen-
thal published a report entitled Books and Bookmen
where he dropped a bombshell. “No gassing took place
in any camp on German soil.”

» On Jan. 24, 1993 in Stars and Stripes, Weisenthal
repeated the claim that no gassings occurred anyplace
in Germany. “It is true that there were no extermina-
tion camps on German soil.” He also admitted that a
supposed gas chamber at Dachau was never con-
structed.

* In a 1995 publication called The Changing Shape
of Holocaust Memory, the American Jewish Commit-
tee revealed, “There were no killing centers per se in
Germany, [and] as horrifying as the conditions were at
Dachau, its gas chamber was never used.” Of course,
we know from Weisenthal’s statement two years prior
that Dachau never had a gas chamber.

So, at this point, the only camps that could have
potentially been used as “death chambers” were solely



; located in Poland, and their number has been reduced
to and established at six—Auschwitz (Birkenau), Bel-
zac, Treblinka, Sobibor, Majdanek and Chelmno. Of
these, Jewish historians agree that potential extermina-
tions could have only occurred at two locales: Majda-
nek and Auschwitz (the main camp and Birkenau).

As readers have already learned, the Auschwitz
death count could be as low as 70,Q00—from old age,
starvation and disease—while no mass graves were
ever discovered at Treblinka.

How, then, could anyone ever attain the mythical
[figure of six million, especially when WW Il ended
and Russia’s Jewish Bolsheviks seized these facilities

I and didn’t permit anyone to inspect them for years un-
til all the necessary “renovations” were completed to
transform them from labor camps into death factories?

Holocaust historians have officially dropped from
their lists hundreds of other facilities where executions
supposedly took place. Why? Because absolutely no
evidence has ever been unearthed to support the claims
of their existence. There wasn’t adequate manpower,
money, resources, chain-of-command orders, autopsy
substantiation, weaponry or raw materials to conduct
the execution of six million Jews. Corroborating evi-
dence does not exist.

Therefore, claims that Jews were snuffed at Dachau
and Buchenwald have been dismissed out of hand be-
cause the fairytales are so untenable as to be laughable.
Instead, what were originally called gas chambers at
German labor camps have now been revised to reflect
their actual intent—they were morgues to process the
deceased, especially during the final months of WW I



when Allied forces bombed supply lines and workers
starved or died of typhus-related illnesses.

When we analyze Majdanek, two holocaust re-
searchers—Wolfgang Benz and Gerald Reittlinger—
deny that any killings took place at this installation,
even though some claim over a million Jews perished
there.

In this regard, the only camp that exterminations
could have occurred at was Auschwitz. But these ab-
surdities have already been debunked in an earlier
chapter. With these facts in mind, consider a few of the
other preposterous fabrications told about these facili-
ties.

 Sobibor — Eyewitness Alexander Pechersky told
this fantastical lie about supposed execution methods.

“As one entered it [looked] like a normal shower: hot
and cold taps for running water, wash basins. As soon
as everyone was inside, the doors slammed shut with a
loud noise. Out of holes in the ceiling, a heavy black-
ish substance poured down in spiral shapes.”



Now, to compensate for all the people supposedly
screaming inside these shower stalls, the Germans,
we’re told, kept caged geese at Sobibor and released
them whenever the showers were turned on to cover up
the garish sounds of death wails emitted by the prison-
ers.

» At Nuremberg, a Nazi guard named Anton Kaindl
was coerced into testifying that he and several others
built a gas chamber at a camp in Germany called Sach-
senhausen. Yet, it’s already been established that no
death factories existed on German soil.

» Chelmno — SS commandants were said to have
executed upwards of 1.3 million Jewish inmates inside

“gas vans.” Imagine how much fuel and how many
vehicles—not to mention personnel—would be needed
to kill over a million people inside tiny little vans.



* Birkenau — As the story goes, no sooner would

anyone viewing photographs of this place sees rows
and rows of bunkhouses that each contain hundreds of
beds. Why take the inordinate amount of time to con-
struct this many sleeping quarters with this many beds
if the Jews were merely going to be killed upon arriv-
al? (After the war, surrendered German soldiers were
herded into pastures with no shelter whatsoever, whe-
reupon they died like flies from exposure, starvation
and thirst.)

* Belzec — Initially, an eyewitness named Kurt
Gerstein swore that over 20 million Jews were slaugh-
tered here. Another, Rudolf Reder, said 3 million were
killed.



How did the Germans allegedly slay this many
people? Some said via the use of diesel engines that
asphyxiated  the
victims (an ex-
tremely inefficient
mode of Kkilling).

Author Dr. Stefan
Szende proposed
that the soon-to-be
deceased were lo-
wered into con-
tainers filled with
quicklime  Then Jewish workers at the Belzecfacility
again, Abraham Silberstein was convinced that elec-
trical ovens (not gas) constituted the preferred method.

Of course, no executions were performed at Belzec,
and historians have tried to sweep these ludicrous tales
under the carpet.

» Bergen-Belsen — Even the most hardcore holo-
caust faithful admit there were no gas chambers there.

* Birkenau — The only evidence that is offered for
the gas chambers supposedly used at this locale is a
plastic replica with a fake metal door that was crafted
by an artist in Poland. Nothing else.

* Treblinka — Although already covered in a pre-
vious chapter, it should be noted that in Vasily Gross-
man’s book on this subject, he claimed that Jews were
killed here via suffocation (i.e. removing the oxygen
from inside a room filled with victims).

At Nuremberg, others forwarded the notion that
steam killed the Jews. Others claimed it was diesel ex-
haust, chlorine, or mass firing squad executions.



Then, as has been shown, the corpses were alleged-
ly buried in mass graves, exhumed in 1943, and then
cremated in mass pyres without anyone noticing mil-
lions of bodies being burnt.

N —Taken a step further, if hundreds of Jews at a time
were killed inside gas chambers and then guards en-
tered shortly thereafter to remove the corpses, they too
would have instantly died because gasses trapped be-
tween these mounds of bodies would have been re-
leased when they were un-piled from one another.

As the Latin saying goes: falsus in uno, falsus in
omnibus . . . false in part, false as a whole. When in-
spectors looked at the showers that were supposed to
have rained Zyklon B onto prisoners, they all ruled it
impossible.

As for the use of diesel exhaust, apyone with a ba-
sic understanding of science knows that the carbon
monoxide ratio is extremely low. A gasoline engine

,produces at least seven times more carbon monoxide
than does diesel, but still this inefficient mode of death
is listed quite extensively in holocaust lore.

Again, after wading through these absurd stories,
its necessary to remind readers as to why these various
camps were erected—to harness forced labor as a
means of keeping the German war machine rolling. If
all of them were used to gas Jews, why isn’t there even
one single live-action photo of these people being ex-
ecuted? Of six million victims, no one—not even a
sympathetic or merely curious German—snapped a
picture? There is, however, film footage of Jews work-
ing at a camp in Czechoslovakia named Taurezstadt.

Guards could have made vast sums of money after
the war with this crucial evidence. Yet not one—NOT



ONE—photo exists to chronicle even a single killing
in German gas chambers. No victims in crematoria, no
pictures of actual spewing smokestacks, no photos of
vast ash piles. Nothing.

Then again, pictures that surfaced later—those of
the chutes supposedly used to introduce Zyklon B—
were proven false. Further, photographic negatives of
the camps were altered, adding smoke to chimneys or
large groups of people surrounding alleged crematoria.

In addition to a lack of physical evidence, records
for the construction of hundreds of “death camps” are
completely absent from German files despite virtually
100 percent detail for every other project.

/| Historians have also not been able to produce the
smoking gun document where Adolf Hitler ordered a
mass extermination of Jews. To sidestep this issue, ho-
locaust fabricator Raul Hilberg floated an idea that the
*Nazis—hundreds and thousands of them—had a magi-
cal telepathic meeting of the minds—without any spe-
cific orders—that drew all of them to take it upon
themselves to kill Jews by the millions. They simply
all acted on an unspoken “understanding.”

Surely nobody could buy such an insane idea.

Premier holocaust historian Amo Mayer came
clean in his book Why Did the Heavens Not Darken
that proof of functioning gas chambers was “rare and
unreliable.” Plus, if Hitler’s henchmen were so mania-
cally efficient to kill six million Jews, why are there so
many survivors . . . supposedly millions and millions
of them that weren Vexterminated7 If this were such a
cmcial project, how could so many Jews have es-
caped—right between their fingers?



DEATH MODE FANTASIES

In addition to alleged poison gas chambers, Zyklon
B, mass pyres and Elie WieseTs claims that Jews were
burned alive, firing squads, chlorine, vacuum cham-
bers, high voltage electricity, steam, lime baths and
diesel death factories on wheels were allegedly used to
kill Jews. A man named Kurt Gerstein once proposed
that, at minimum, 20 million Jews were killed via di-
esel exhaust alone. Other modes of murder supposedly
also existed that haven’t already been recounted in this
book. A sampling of these absurd stories:

* During the Nuremberg Trials, purported evidence
of “steam chambers” at
Birkenau used to Kkill
Jews was presented to
onlookers. In actuality,
these relatively small
rooms were used to de-
louse inmate clothing.

* The Soviet news-  Alleged “steam chambers” at
paper Pravda carried the Trehlinka
following item on Feb. 2, 1945: “Germans wiped out
[any] trace of the assembly line killing installation [at
Auschwitz] where hundreds of people were killed si-
multaneously with electrical current” (i.e. death by
electrocution). Other sources claimed that prisoners
were electrocuted in huge vats of water or, to make
matters simpler, they were immersed into boiling pools
of water.



* A report issued by members of the Polish resis-
tance movement recounted death via pneumatic ham-
mers. “They bound the prisoners’ hands together be-
hind their backs and brought them in, one after the
other, naked, into the courtyard. They placed them in
front of the barrel of an air gun that was discharged
without a sound. The hammer crushed the skull, and
the compressed air destroyed the entire brain.”

A prosecutor for the United States, Robert Jack-
son, accused Nazis of killing Jews with atomic bombs.
At Nuremberg he proclaimed, “By means of this newly
invented weapon of destruction, 20,000 people were
eradicated almost instantaneously in such a way that
there was no trace left of them.”

* At the Chelmno camp, an occupant named Adal-
bert Rueckerl claimed that three “gas vans” were used
to exterminate, at a bare minimum, 150,000 Jews.

» Another fantastic tale involves the supposed ex-
ecution of 33,711 Jews via gunfire on Sept. 29, 1941
on the outskirts of Kiev in a village named Babi Yar.

\# After burying the corpses in a ravine, German forces
supposedly learned that Soviet troops were approach-
ing. To avoid detection of their firing squad execu-
tions, the Nazis allegedly dug up all 33,000+ corpses
and then set them afire in a blazing crematory pyre.

Not to let facts get in the way of a good fairytale,
reconnaissance planes at that time revealed no mass
burnings of corpses. Later, investigators found abso-
lutely no mass graves, no fiery pyres, nor any evidence
that the ground had been dug up or overturned. No
massacre in any way, shape or form occurred at Babi
Yar.



* As the Nuremberg war crimes trials proceeded on
Feb. 14, 1946 prosecutors presented into evidence a
photo of what they
called a “mobile
bone-grinding ma-
chine” that the SS
Sonderkommandos
allegedly used at
the Janowska con-
centration camp.

* In Dec. 1945
at the Nuremberg
trials, those on the A supposed Nazi “mobile bone-grinding
witness stand de- machine
scribed the use of steam chambers to kill Jews. “The
chambers were hermetically closed and steam was let
in. In a few minutes all was over.”

* An interesting sidebar once appeared on The
Learning Channel relating to a convicted American
prisoner in North Carolina named David Lawson. On
June 15, 1994 he was executed in the gas chamber.
Oddly enough, it took wardens a total of 18 long, gru-
eling, torturous minutes to kill the condemned man us-
ing this method. 18 minutes! They had filled the gas
chamber with specially prepared poison made precise-
ly to kill prisoners. But because Lawson didn’t take
deep breaths, he endured for nearly 20 minutes. Now,
imagine if a room were filled with hundreds of prison-
ers, and the gas in question—Zyklon B—had to affect
all these individuals simultaneously. There is no way
possible that the Nazis could have efficiently snuffed
six million Jews using such an incompetent mode of
execution.



* A self-described eyewitness at Belzec, Jan Karski,
related how trains filled with quicklime were used to
kill Jews. “The floors of the cars had been covered
with a thick, white powder. It was quicklime, [which]
is simply unslaked lime or calcium oxide ... the occu-
pants of the cars would be literally burned to death be-
fore long, the flesh eaten from their bones.” (In reality,’
quicklime is only somewhat dangerous. It causes se-
vere irritation when inhaled or placed in contact with
moist skin or eyes. Inhalation may cause coughing,
sneezing and labored breathing. It does not eat the
flesh from your bones, and is unlikely to kill a human
being.)

* In some of the most remote areas of Europe, the
Nazis were accused of Kkilling Jewish prisoners at
“blood poisoning stations.”

* At the Odessa camp, holocaust expert Yehuda
Bauer claimed that 144,000 Jews were drowned.
Another person alleged that drowning was used to era-
dicate an entire city. “Not a single Jew remains in Kiev
since the Germans have thrown the entire Jewish
population into the Dnieper [River].”

* Last but not least, Dr. Stefan Szende described
death chambers where prisoners were electrocuted.
“The naked Jews were brought into gigantic halls.
Several thousand people at one time could fit into
these halls. The halls had no floor [sic]. The floor was
of metal and was submergible. The floors of these
halls, with their thousands of Jews, sank into a basin of
water which lay beneath, but only far enough so that
people on the metal plate were not entirely under wa-
ter. When all the Jews on the metal plate were in the
water up to over their hips, electrical current was sent



through the water. After a few moments, all the Jews,
thousands at once, were dead. Then they raised the
metal plate out of the water. On it lay the corpses of
the murder victims. Another shock of electrical current
was sent through and the metal plate became a crema-
tory oven, white hot, until all the bodies were burnt to
ashes.”

Over the past six decades, holocaust experts have
quietly tried to dismiss each and every one of these
far-fetched fabrications so that they all fell by the way-
side—ignored, forgotten and dismissed so as to no
longer be such a grotesque embarrassment.



LIES & TRUTH-TELLERS

In 1945, as WW Il came to an end, the man who
directed the Soviet Union’s secret police, or NKVD,
proclaimed that the Nazis had exterminated six million
Jews in a horrendous holocaust. His name was Lavren-
ty P. Beria, and he was Jewish.

May, 1945 also saw the arrest of an Austrian Nazi
Party member and SS officer named Wilhelm Hoettl,
who, by various accounts, had sold his services to as
many as a dozen different intelligence agencies around
the world. When Americans seized Hoettl, he soon be-
came an employee of the CIA’s forerunner, the OSS.

Afterward, Hoettl shifted his allegiance to the U.S.
Army’s counter-intelligence corps, whereupon he an-
nounced that Germans had killed six million Jews. In-
terestingly, only five years later, the CIA characterized
Hoettl as “a notorious fabricator of intelligence.” By
1952, they called his testimonials “worthless and pos-
sibly inflated or fabricated.”

Conversely, world leaders who had directed war ef-l
forts for the U.S., Britain and France failed to once'
mention a holocaust of any sort in their memoirs. Com
sider:

W inston Churchill
Dwight Eisenhower, Charles

1944 De Gaulle



Dwight Eisenhower — 559 pages
Winston Churchill — 4,448 pages (six volumes)
Charles de Gaulle — 2,054 pages (three volumes)

When added together, the memoirs of these three
extremely well informed, influential men, totaling
7,061 pages, never once mentions a holocaust, geno-
cide of the Jews, gas chambers, or that Hitler’s soldiers
exterminated six million victims. Not once.

] Furthermore, the International Red Cross, who vi-

/sited each and every one of these labor camps on Ger-

* [ man soil and in foreign countries, doesn’t mention

| even once the supposed systematic slaughter of six

I million Jews. Not once. Likewise, as previously noted,

Nazi hunter Simon Wiesenthal admitted in 1975, “No
gassing took place in any camp on German soil.”

Moreover, a 1943 report entitled Foreign Relations
of the United States Diplomatic Papers clearly stated
that there was “insufficient evidence to justify the
statement regarding execution in gas chambers.”

Even when the historic Yalta Conference occurred
in Feb. 1945—attended by Winston Churchill, FDR
and Joseph Stalin—none of these three men uttered a

single word
about what
would have been,
conceivably, an
ongoing, massive
holocaust that led
to the deaths of
six million Jews.
But, not one

_ mention from
Yalta Conference: Churchill,

Franklin Roosevelt and Joseph Stalin



these world leaders, the Pope, or the international
press. Why didn’t any of them find it necessary to
broach the subject when these mass murders were sup-
posedly at their height?

Despite no evidence, reports, or mention from these
official sources, quite a number of Jews have made
claims that were later proven to be lies. For example:

A e Moshe Peer stated in 1993 that she miraculously
escaped six times from the gas chambers at Bergen-
Belsen. Of course, no gassings ever occurred at this
installation.

» Another woman claimed to have escaped three
times from Nazi gas chambers, the last time by claw-
ing her way through concrete walls using nothing more
than her fingernails—a Sisyphean task.

e Incredibly, Nazi hunter Simon Wiesenthal has|
publicly stated that he was imprisoned in 13 different |
death camps, but amazingly, the Nazis didn’t kill him f
in any of them. During one alleged escape, Wiesenthal
claimed to walk 170 miles with an amputated toe and a
foot infected with gangrene. Then, his gangrenous
limb healed all by itself without assistance from any
doctors or nurses.

* In Apr. 1944 a Jewish in-
mate, Rudolf Vrba, fled from
Auschwitz with another Jew,

Alfred Wetzler. Vrba asserted
that exterminations were being
conducted at Auschwitz, and
that SS commander Heinrich
Himmler watched Jews being
gassed at Birkenau through a



tiny glass peephole in the door.

When questioned about this information, however,
Vrba’s story fell apart. First, Himmler’s last appear-
ance at Auschwitz occurred in July 1942, and Birke-
nau’s crematorium didn’t even open until Mar. 1943,

Secondly, Vrba backtracked on his sighting of
Himmler. “Perhaps it was him, perhaps it was only a
representative. | don’t think it makes a big difference.”
He also retracted another element of his account. “No,
| didn’t say | was present when he peeked through the
door of the gas chamber, but I put together a story
which | had heard several times from various people.”
To compensate for stretching the truth, Vrba con-
cluded that he used “poetic license” when relating this
tale in his book.

Fortunately, others have stepped forward to set the
record straight:e

* On Jan. 18, 1945 Jewish holocaust expert Raul
Hilberg testified at a trial, “No scientific reports prove
Jews were exterminated in Nazi gas chambers.” He
added, “German war documents contain no mention of
killing Jews. There are no autopsy reports indicating a
single person died from exposure to poisonous gas in
chambers.”

* In the German publication Die Zeit, historian Dr.
Martin Broszat wrote on Aug. 19, 1960, “Neither in
Dachau nor in Bergen-Belsen, nor in Buchenwald
were Jews or other prisoners gassed. The gas chamber
in Dachau was never entirely finished or put into oper-
ation.”



« Jewish historian Samuel Gringauz told Jewish So-
cial Studies in Jan. 1950, “Most of the memoirs and
reports of holocaust survivors are full of preposterous
verbosity, graphomaniac exaggeration, dramatic ef-
fects, overestimated self-inflation, dilettante philoso-
phizing, would-be lyricism, unchecked rumors, bias,
partisan attacks and apologies.”

In regard to the so-called \yannsee Conference
where a blueprint for the final solution was allegedly
crafted, Jewish holocaust expert and faculty member
of Jerusalem’s Hebrew University, Yehuda Bauer,
stated, “It was hardly a conference, [and] little of what
was said there
was executed

UJ1 detail.”

 Holocaust
author  David
Irving suc-
cinctly put this
matter into
perspective.

“The gas

chambers and

factories of death are legend ... the Jews are very foo-

lish not to abandon the gas chamber theory while they
still have time.” Interestingly,
some eyewitnesses retell how
corpses allegedly pulled from
carbon  monoxide  death
chambers were wet and cov-
ered in sweat and urine, their
skin a bluish color. Except,

David Irving, imprisoned in solitary confinementfor 13 months by
Austrian authoritiesfor a “crime ” ofquestioning the holocaust



all medical literature has the flesh of those dying from
carbon monoxide asphyxiation being bright pink or
cherry red in color [not blue].

* Valery Lebedev, a woman who worked in the gas
industry, said after reading a book on the holocaust,
“There was no killing of Jews in gas chambers of the
Nazi camps since there were no chambers there. The
bombing of Germany and the evacuation of the camps
blocked German supplies; the people there were starv-
ing, but the main thing is that there were outbursts of
typhus epidemics in the camps. Lice spread this ill-
ness, and the Germans were disinfesting their clothes
with Zyklon B insecticide.”

* Bishop Richard Williamson told a camera crew

for Swedish television in Nov. 2008, “I believe that the
historical evidence is strongly against six million Jews
having been deliberately gassed in gas chambers as a



deliberate policy of Adolf Hitler.” He added, “I think
200,000 to 300,000 Jews perished in Nazi concentra-
tion camps, but none of them in gas chambers.”

* Dr. Aryeh Leon Kubovy, while belonging to TeT~
Aviv’s Israel Center for Jewish Documentation, proc-
laimed in 1960, “There exists no document signed by
Hitler, Himmler or Heydrich speaking of exterminat-
ing the Jews, and the word ‘extermination’ does not
appear in the letter from Goering to*Heydrich concern-
ing the Final Solution to the Jewish question.” 1---



EXPOSED: FAKE MEMOIRS

A common response to holocaust revisionism is:
“Well, what about all the eyewitness testimony and
personal accounts from survivors?”

If the following individuals are any indicator, de-
ceit seems to be the predominant theme among these
people.

» Jerzy Kosinskv — This Polish Jew penned an au-
tobiography that became a vir-
tual pornographic onslaught of JERZY KOSINSKI
“anti-Semitism,” violence, ob-  The Painted Bird
sessive sadomasochism, sexual
torture and gore. Kosinsky
paints his fellow countrymen as
Jew-haters that abuse their in-
mates at concentration camps
with a relish that is beyond de-
scription. Praised by Elie Wie-
sel and other major historians, his book The Painted
Bird ultimately was exposed as a literary hoax.

* Elie Wiesel — Speaking

NG—"_ of which, Wiesel’s book,

EJB/\‘ Night, claims that at Bu-

chenwald, at least 10,000
BTy ey Jews a day were thrust, still
G oo alive, into ditches filled with

flames until they were burned
to death. Anyone familiar
with ancient Old Testament



lore realizes that such an act is reminiscent of Jewish
parents throwing their children into burning pits of fire
as a sacrifice to the god Moloch.

Strangely, Wiesel, who was supposedly held at
Auschwitz, never made one mention of any gas cham-
bers at this facility.

As for the infernal ditches of fire, Wiesel wrote,

/" “Not far from us blazed flames from a pit, gigantic
flames. They were burning something. A lorry drove
up to the pit and dumped something into it. They were
small children. Babies! Yes, | had seen it with my own
eyes! Children in the flames.”

If such preposterous hyperbolic rhetoric wasn’t
enough, Wiesel also claimed that Nazi executions at
Ukraine’s Babi Yar resulted in the following pheno-'
menon. “For month after month, the ground never
stopped trembling, and from time to time, geysers of
blood spurted from it.” -

Like Yellowstone’s Old Faithful, Wiesel wants us
to believe that geysers of blood shot upward into the
air from the ground. To magnify his propensity to lie,
Wiesel actually claimed to have been liberated from
two different concentration camps.

On Jan. 4, 1987 The New York Times carried an ac-
count of how Wiesel recalled being at Auschwitz when
the Soviets arrived to rescue everyone.

On Apr. 11, 1983 Wiesel told Washington, D.C.’s
National Press Club that on Apr. 15, 1945 he had been
a prisoner at Dachau when the U.S. Army liberated it.

So, according to Wiesel, he was rescued from one
camp by either the Soviets or Allies, then somehow
fell back into the Nazis’ clutches again, whereupon he



became a prisoner in another death camp, only to be

lifted yet again from death’s clutches.

* Binjamin Wilkomirski —
In his book Fragments—based
on “recovered memories”—this
writer too depicted Nazis as
crazed, psychopathic monsters
that were so inhumane they ac-
tually smashed the craniums of
Jewish babies bom inside con-
centration camps. Yet, Wilko-
mirski isn’t Jewish, he was never
inside a concentration camp, and
instead spent the duration of
WW 11 in Switzerland. Experts
concluded that his work was

nothing more than a convoluted fantasy.

 Martin Gray — Characterizing himself as a survi-
vor of the holocaust, this author provided a bone-
chilling account of his escape from Treblinka to re-
main alive. Years later, however, the ghostwriter of
these memoirs admitted that Gray had never been an
inmate at Treblinka, and therefore never escaped from

It.

* Edith “Edie” Eger — As a ce-
lebrity on the top-dollar holocaust
circuit, Ms. Eger tells an improba-
ble story that defies belief. “As
Edie was onstage dancing for Dr.
Mengele, she saw Dblack smoke
from a gas chamber, which likely
contained the ashes of her mother,
drift upward toward heaven. Edie

Dr. Edith “Edie ” Eger



and her sister Magda were close to death many times.
Whenever they showered, they never knew if they
would receive water or gas. They were becoming ex-
hausted and emaciated with hunger. Edie became so
weak that she went in and out of consciousness. Even
her sister’s vigilance as a caretaker couldn’t revive
Edie. She was unconscious when guards thought she
was dead and they tossed her in a mass grave in the
woods behind the camp. Then in May 1945 Edie’s mi-
racle came. Almost a year to the day from when she
arrived in Auschwitz, an American Gl who was there
with the 71st Infantry to liberate the Gunskirchen Lag-
er camp pulled her from a pile of corpses in the woods.
He saw her hand move. She weighed 40 pounds and
had a broken back, but she was alive!”

* Herman Rosenblat — Oprah Winfrey called the
romance between this
gentleman and his
wife  Roma  the
“greatest love story
ever told.” According
to Rosenblat, as a boy
he was incarcerated
at a Nazi death camp
when Roma, from

outside the walls, somehow managed to throw apples
over the fence so that he didn’t starve to death. After
the war, this couple reunited and married. But, once
critics began investigating his story in depth, Rosen-
blat admitted that he had faked the entire story. Pro-
holocaust apologist Deborah Lipstadt referred to Ro-
senblat’s tail-tale as bogus before he even confessed to
fabricating it.



* Irene Kirkland — On Nov. 18, 1979 this woman
told the Washington Post that as a young girl, Nazis
held her at Buchenwald where, in her own words,
“They were doing the exterminating.” But, her words
fell apart when Simon Wiesenthal admitted that no ex-
termination camps existed on German soil, where Bu-
chenwald was located.

» Misha Defonseca — Claiming to be another sur-
vivor of Hitler’s atrocities, De-
fonseca penned a book entitled
Misha: A Memoir of the Holo-
caust Years in which, as a six-
year-old girl, she fled from
Nazi murderers in the Warsaw
ghettos, only to embark on a
1900-mile quest that took her
through Poland, Belgium and
Germany in search of her par-

Misha Defonseca

ents.

During her trek that spanned four years, this young
girl claimed to have killed an SS officer by the time
she reached the age of ten while also living with and
being raised by a pack of wolves. Defonseca added
that these very same wolves fed her and provided shel-
ter to keep her alive. In return, Misha tended to the
wolf cubs while their wolf parents searched for food.
When successful in their hunt, the wolves came back
with raw meat and bugs that she gleefully ate. If there
was no raw meat, Misha said she ate mud and grass.

Also, by the time she turned nine, Ms. Defonseca
claimed to have engaged in some type of tryst or love
affair with an adult man.



After receiving acclaim from the holocaust com-
munity and even film offers, it turned out that Misha’s
autobiography was nothing more than a delusional fol-
ly. She never roamed among wolves, she didn’t mur-
der a would-be Nazi captor, and she never rambled
across Europe in search of her missing parents. It was
all a pathetic fantasy and she subsequently became a
laughingstock. Meanwhile, Defonseca pocketed mil-
lions in royalties—far more than honest revisionists
ever receive in compensation.

 Irene Zisblatt — In 2008, this woman who

stressed that she’d en-

dured 50 years of silence,

recounted her supposed

travails as a holocaust

survivor in a book en-

titled The Fifth Diamond.

During the course of

chronicling her years

during the 1940s, Zisblatt claimed to have been a pa-

tient—or guinea pig—of the infamous Dr. Josef Men-

gele, who, for some reason, removed the tattoo that
had been imprinted on her skin by other Nazis.

She also purports to have barely escaped her skin
being turned into a lampshade, and said that Nazis
were drawing the blood out of other women’s daugh-
ters. Mengele, at least according to Zisblatt, somehow
altered her own eye color from brown to blue. If that’s
not bad enough, a demented Nazi nurse supposedly
tried to kill her via a fatal injection, except that it
ended up simply being an attempt to scare her.

In addition to all these morbid episodes, Zisblatt in-
troduced another element to her story. Namely, before



her mother and father were allegedly executed and the
young girl was removed to Auschwitz, her mother
sewed four diamonds into Irene’s dress for safekeep-
ing. That way, if she were to ever achieve freedom,
Zisblatt could buy bread with the diamonds.

So, while at Auschwitz, to preserve these di-
amonds, the child swallowed all of them at sometime
during the day, only to defecate them out again later.
After performing this act, Zisblatt relates how she
scraped through the fecal-encrusted matter and re-ate
the diamonds . . . every single day for her entire 15
month stay at this encampment.

How the diamonds didn’t slice Irene’s tongue,
throat, esophagus, intestines or stomach lining isn’t
explained. Nor does the author fully elaborate on how
she didn’t get sick from eating diamonds covered with
feces. If other Auschwitz survivors are to be believed,
none of them had enough water to drink, and therefore
suffered from dehydration. However, the young child
seemed capable of sanitizing the diamonds so as to not
fall ill.

To reach a fevered pitch, Zisblatt proceeded to re-
late how she escaped from the inside of a gas chamber
that teemed with numerous other Jewish women. After
fleeing from this room of death, Zisblatt then sought
assistance from someone at Auschwitz who thrust her
over a barbed-wire fence that had an electric current
running through it. From there—stark naked—the girl
fled to a train and wound up in a hospital where Gen.
George S. Patton personally visited her and offered
gifts.

Needless to say, her story was proven to be a lie.



HUMAN SOAP, LAMPSHADES,
SHRUNKEN HEADS & TATTOOS

At the Nuremberg Trials, 1945-1946, eyewitnesses
took the stand to say that Nazi guards manufactured
soap from the corpses of Jews that.they’d slain in con-
centration camps. Further, the Soviets also presented
what they called “evidence” of human soap and human
skin at these Tribunals (exhibit USSR-393).

In actuality, claims first arose during WW | that
Germans were making soap from Jewish bodies, but
this fabrication was quickly squelched due to a lack of
evidence. Later, as early as 1941, sources in Turek,
Poland—basing their information on a U.S. military
intelligence report—revealed, “The Germans had
brought thousands of Polish teachers, priests and Jews
there [a human soap factory] and after extracting the
blood serum from
their  bodies, had
thrown them in large
pots and melted off
grease to make soap.”

Other sources
contributed to this
tale, including famed
movie director Billy
Wilder, whose film
Crews supposedly
caught the Nazis making soap from Jewish fat and
lampshades from their skin.



As alleged proof of these atrocities, Jews presented
boxes with the initials “RIF” stamped on them, claim-
ing these letters stood for Rein Juedisches Fett or
“Pure Jewish Fat.”

Why the letter “J” was transmogrified into the let-
ter “I” is something of a mystery. It might have been
Reine juedischen fat, or Reine Juedischen fat. Others
say it was Reichs Juedisches Fett or other variants.

Nazi hunter Simon Wiesenthal weighed in on this
matter in 1946 by writing for a Jewish paper called
Der Neueweg. “On the boxes were the initials RIF,
‘Pure Jewish Fat.” These boxes were destined for the
Waffen-SS. The wrapping paper revealed with com-
pletely cynical objectivity that this soap was manufac-
tured from Jewish bodies.”

Wiesenthal continued, “The civilized world may
not believe the joy with which the Nazis and their
women thought of this soap. In each piece of soap they
saw a Jew who had been magically put there.”

Rabbi Stephen Wise of the American Jewish Con-
gress and World Jewish Congress stated in Nov. 1942
that soap 'and fertilizer were processed from Jewish
COrpses.

As a detainee at the Stutthof concentration camp in
1944, Nesse Godin later recalled in 1983, “They gave
us a shower and a piece of soap. After the war we
found out the soap was made out of pure Jew fat, Rein
Juden Fett, marked in the initials on the soap that I
washed with. For all I know, maybe there was a little
bit of my father’s fat in that soap.”

The Anti-Defamation League (ADL) added in a
chapbook entitled The Anatomy of Nazism, “The
process of brutalization did not end with the mass



murders themselves. Large quantities of soap were
manufactured from the corpses of those murdered.”

In 1942, the American Jewish Congress published
a report stating that the Germans also used scientific
methods to transform the remains of Jews into glue.
The hysteria reached such fevered proportions that at
funerals, bars of soap were actually buried in a plot at
Jewish cemeteries in honor of the “dead” contained
inside them. These same bars of soap were also dis-
played at holocaust museums worldwide.

Other individuals such as Mel Mermelstein, in his
movie Never Forget, took it upon himself to perpetuate
the soap story, as did Ben Edelbaum in his memoir
Growing Up in the Holocaust, Konnilyn Feig in Hit-
lers Death Camps, and noted historian William Shirer
in The Rise and Fall ofthe Third Reich.

Lastly, one of the primary sources responsible for
proposing the six mil-
lion death count, a
Russian propagandist
named llya Ehren-
burg, detailed in his
autobiography, “
have held in my hand
a cake of soap
stamped with the le-
gend “‘Pure Jewish
Soap,” prepared from
the corpses of people
who had been de-
stroyed.”

The gaping, tre-
mendous problem with all their versions of history is

llya Ehrenburg



that every credible Jewish holocaust expert now admits
that the soap story was nothing more than lies and
propaganda.

Rabbi Arthur Schneier, at the Holocaust Museum
in Washington, D.C., circa 1983, reiterated that RIF
represented
Rein Jadisches
Fett, or “Pure

Jewish Fat.”
But in actu-
ality, “RIF” (it
was never RJF)
stamped on
each cake of
soap was in ref- Holocaust Museum, Washington, D C

erence to the Reich Center for Industrial Fat Provision-
ing (i.e. Reichsstelle fuer Industrielle Fettuersorgung)
that made cheap cleaning products in war-torn Germa-
ny.

A number of respected authorities have gone on the
record refuting the human soap hoax.e

» Author Walter Lageur stated in The Terrible Se-
cret that there are no facts to back up this tale.

» Chicago Tribune, Apr. 25, 1991, wrote, “Nazis
didn’t make soap from Jews’ fat.”

* In a Jan. 1986 letter, investigators at the Danzig
Institute admitted that soap was never made from hu-
man corpses during the war.

« Cited numerous times before in this book, Yehuda
Bauer, a historian specializing in the holocaust at He-
brew University in Israel, disclosed in Apr. 1990 that
the soap tail-tales weren’t true. Detainees, she said,



“Were prepared to believe any horror stories about
their persecutors.”

» Those in charge of protecting the holocaust lega-
cy have admitted that director Billy Wilder’s film
about Nazis making soap from Jewish fat consisted of
lies accomplished via the use of film props.

* Bars of RIF soap were scientifically tested to de-
termine if they possessed any human remains. Not a
single experiment showed positive results.

» Famed holocaust apologist Deborah Lipstadt
shocked the world with a 1981 confirmation that the
human soap story was never based on reality. “The
fact is that the Nazis never used the bodies of Jews, or
for that matter anyone else, for the production of
soap.”

 Holocaust historian, Professor Raul Hilberg, re-
vealed, “The Nazis did not manufacture soap from
human fat and did not kill their victims with diesel ex-
haust.”

* In Israel, a renowned spokesman for the Yad Va/
shem holocaust agency, Shmuel Krakowski, issued a
statement in 1990. “Historians have concluded that
soap was not made from human fat” and the tale was
nothing but a mere legend.

* Gitty Sereny noted in her book Into the Darkness,
“The universally accepted story that the corpses were
used to make soap and fertilizer is finally refuted by
the generally very reliable Ludwigsburg Central Au-
thority for Investigation into Nazi Crimes.”

Human soap wasn’t the only grotesque deception
perpetrated on the global community by holocaust
liars. Another bit of propaganda involved Nazis suppo-



sedly removing the skin of Jewish prisoners and fa-
shioning it into decorative

lampshades. Alleged evidence

of these crimes was displayed

outside the Buchenwald labor

camp where tables were lined

with “human skin lampshades”

and Jewish “shrunken heads.”

Lampshade purportedly made
from Jewish human skin

Supposed Jewish shrunken heads

Yanina Cywinska, a self-described eyewitness, told
of Nazis “parading around [with] briefcases and lamps
made of human skin while washing their bodies with
soap composed of Jewish bone [sic].”

This lark of shrunken Jewish heads originated with
Albert G. Rosenberg of the Allies Psychological War-
fare Division. At the Nuremberg Trials on Dec. 13,
1945, exhibit USA-254 was a Jewish skull that had
been stuffed and preserved. An adjoining Army report
quotes a supposed eyewitness, “l also saw the shrun-
ken heads of two young Poles who had been hanged
for having relations with German girls. The heads were
the size of a fist.”

Not surprisingly, in their book The Incomparable
Crime, authors Roger Manvell and Heinrich Fraenkl
admitted in no uncertain terms that tales of lampshades
made from human skin “appeared to be dubious.”



Af Two final notes: first, when aged Jews refer to piles

'of hair as evidence that the Nazis
sheared their heads prior to gass-
ing them, the truth is that, indeed,
everyone at these installations
received haircuts to get rid of lice
that carried the typhus disease. A
dated Alfred Hitchcock docu-
mentary actually depicts the en-
tire process of detainees being
laundered and their heads shaved
to remove lice.

Huge piles of clothes and
shoes were also present because

Piles ofdiscarded shoes outside the
Majdanek work camp to halt thefurther
spread oftyphus

Jewish worker getting
haircut to eradicate

lice andprevent typhus
disease

every incoming la-
borer was forced to
wear new uniforms
and shoes due to
their previous attire
being contaminated
with lice. These
acts consisted of
nothing more than
basic human clean-
liness to prevent
the further spread

of disease. So, when holocaust museums show huge
piles of shoes to allegedly reinforce the notion that
thousands of Jews had been massacred; it’s really
nothing more than a childish ploy to play on the gulli-
bility of those viewing the exhibits. But nothing more
sinister than shoes being removed to prevent the



spread of typhus can be derived from these crass dis-
plays of propaganda.

As for the legendary tat-
toos that' so many survivors
flash as proof that they were in
a concentration camp, it’s true
that they did receive these
markings. But' first of all, the
simple fact that they’re still
alive and able to show these
tattoos means they weren’t ex-
ecuted. The sheer number of
these individuals who go
around rolling up their sleeves A Buchenwald laborer
to show a tattoo directly im- showing his worker identification

number tattoo
plies that hundreds of thou-
sands of Jews weren't killed at these work facilities.

Also, if the Nazis operated such an efficient killing
machine that eradicated the lives of six million Jews,
why would they waste such an inordinate amount of
time tattooing not only the six million that they suppo-
sedly killed, but the millions that also survived?

After all, why tattoo someone if they were simply
going to be forced into a death room and be gassed to
death? What logical sense does that make?

The answer is quite elementary. Since the Jews and
other workers didn’t possess fancy laminated ID cards
like we carry today, the Germans tattooed them so they
could keep track of their laborers. If someone was to
be killed instantly, there’s no necessity for a tattoo. But
if they intended to use their services in a factory set-
ting for years into the future, the tattoo served as a way



of identifying each person. There is nothing sinister
about that.






PART TWO

How Elite Zionists Engineered the
Holocaust:
An Analysis of Their Means,

Motives and Agenda






NAZIS AND ZIONIST
COLLABORATION

Zionism’s dark side is a secret that Jewish leaders
have taken great measures to keep concealed. Bio-
grapher Shabtai Teveth cites Israel™ first Prime Minis-
ter, David Ben-Gurion, and his gutter-level aims to use

avid lii’n-Curion

Hitler in order to build
their new homeland in the
Middle East. Ben-Gurion
stated, “The harsher the
affliction, the greater the
strength of Zionism.”

As WW Il was being
waged across  Europe,
Ben-Gurion exhibited less
concern for the well being
of Jews in Germany and
Poland than he did in
planning for the creation

of a new lIsraeli state that would be stolen from Pales-
tinians whose ancestors had lived there for millennia.
Ben-Gurion’s motto at that time, “Zionism is above

everything,” says it all.

Both of these entities—Nazis and Zionists—had a
common goal: to rid Germany of the Jews. On Hitler’s
side, he resented the fact that following WW |, Jews
began to control an inordinate amount of his nation’s
media, banks, schools, law offices, hospitals and in-

dustry.



Secondly, less than three months after Hitler rose to
power, a Mar. 24, 1933 headline declared, “Judea Dec-
lares War on Germany.” This war wasn’t of a military
variety, but rather in the form of boycotts. With Ger-
many’s economy already in shambles, Hitler and his
colleagues sought nothing less than to see the Jews
leave their country. Zionist organizations, on the other
hand, were already envisioning a new Promised Land
in the Middle East where they could establish a new
state.

So, by 1933—years before the first shots of WW i
rang out—Hitler’s cabinet, in accord with Zionists, en-
couraged Jews to begin an emigration process toward
Palestine. To make this transition easier, Nazis permit-
ted Jews to withdraw their money from banks and take
it with them.

Soon, tens of thousands of Jews led a wave of relo-
cation toward the Middle East and other parts of the



world. Once Hitler rose to and secured power, his par-
ty felt a direct kinship with the Zionists. Their bond
grew so strong that Zionism was
the only other official, legalized
party sanctioned by the Nazis in
Germany. The Zionists even had
their own distinct flag that they
were permitted to display.

Two Zionist leaders—Kurt
Blumenfeld and Robert
Weltsch—specifically engaged in
deals with the Nazis. Moreover, AdolfHitler
the Zionist military arm, Haganah, negotiated directly
with the SS. This relationship became so involved that
Feivel Polkes, a Haganah agent, met with Adolf Eich-
mann in Berlin on Feb. 26, 1937.
Later that year, on Oct. 2, Eich-
mann and his superior, Herbert
Hagen, stepped from an ocean
liner named The Romania in
Haifa, Palestine. The man they
met with, again, was Feivel
Polkes.

The Zionist agenda had as its
foremost priority the creation of
an Israeli state in Palestine filled
with diasporic Jews who left
Germany and Europe. To ac-
complish this feat, they needed to create a fake “holo-
caust” upon which to generate immediate sympathy
they could exploit, in a Machiavellian way to meet their
goals.



So, it wasn’t in the Zionists’ best interest to lose six
million Jews via gas chambers and ovens. They only
wanted to create the appearance of a holocaust in or-
der to steal land from Palestinians and establish a new
nation built on the greatest lies ever disseminated.

The Zionists couldn’t accomplish this Sisyphean
task alone, so not only did they blackmail and bribe
U.S. leaders to establish a new “United Nations” or-
ganization, they also collaborated with the Nazis. The
Zionist betrayal of their own people became so vast
that a Jewish scholar named Hannah Arendt wrote in a
book about Adolf Eichmann that Jews in Europe wil-
lingly worked alongside Nazis in arresting fellow Jews
who would eventually be put into labor camps. At least
150,000 Jews or persons of mixed Jewish heritage also
served in the German military. Other Jews also sought
employment as work camp administrators.

As a reward for their cooperation with the Nazis,

>mani-N h» maun Zionists negotiated
HAAVARA LIMITED what came to be

known as the
Transfer  Agree-
ment, or Haavara.
Naturally,  estab-
lishment historians
refuse to acknowl-
edge that the Third
Reich allowed
Zionists to estab-
lish special areas in
Germany  where
Jews could be

% o trained to learn
Haavara Agreement in Hebrew

Bramvjrui



trades or professions that they’d later use in Palestine.

At these locales, Zionists flew their own flag, pub-
lished a newspaper, and continued facilitating emigra-
tion to the Middle East. By 1939, the German govern-
ment assisted Zionists in securing the departure of ap-
proximately 400,000 Jews—roughly two-thirds of the
entire German Jewish population.

Dr. Austin App, a professor at the University of
Scranton and LaSalle College, explained this situation
in simple terms:

Hitler’s so-called “Final Solution” to the
Jewish problem was not annihilation, but
rather deportation or expulsion from
Germany, which was approved with the
open cooperation and encouragement of
the Zionists themselves who wanted
German Jews to join other Jews from
around the world to leave their own na-
tive countries in order to colonize Pales-
tine.

Absolutely no live person (Jew or non-
Jew) was ever gassed or burned in any
German concentration camp, including
Auschwitz.

It goes without saying that Germans maintained
meticulous records'during WW I, but no one has ever
uncovered a single document or plan that detailed ge-
nocidal murders inside gas chambers or ovens. There
aren’t any documents that even refer to extermination
policies.



Rather, every official report clearly indicates how
Jews would be deported out of Germany—not exter-
minated. Only after WW Il concluded were fraudulent
documents created in order to deceive the public. No
orders were delineated from Hitler or anyone else to
deliberately engage in mass murder against Jews or
any other prisoner.

However, after America entered the war and Ger-
many'’s prospects for victory became increasingly dire,
the Palestine deportation program ended and captured
Jews were shipped off instead to labor camps—many
in Poland—to help sustain their war machine.

Reinhard Heydrich, a noted SS general and head of
security for the Reich, wrote on Jan. 20, 1942 at the
infamous Wannsee Conference, “The emigration pro-
gram has been replaced now by the evacuation of Jews
to the east as a further possible solution, in accordance |
with the previous authorization of the Fuhrer.”

Hysterically paranoid (and overtly deceptive) holo-
caust historians cite this reference as the “final solu-
tion” crafted by Hitler to murder Jews on a mass scale.
But, quite clearly, since the Germans desperately
needed workers in their factories, they could no longer
deport Jews to Palestine. They now required, by sheer
necessity, their efforts as laborers in various industrial
centers.

Even at the notorious Wannsee Conference, never
once did Reinhard Heydrich use the term “extermina-
tion.” Instead, he specifically stated that Jews would
have Arbeitseinsatz im Osten ... i.e. labor assignments
in the east, meaning Poland.

There was no genocide . . . only work reassign-
ments.



HOLOCAUST AGENDA

To revisit an earlier, crucial point, on Jan. 25, 1939
the German Foreign Ministry released a statement on
how to deal with the Jewish problem. “The end policy
in regard to the Jews is the emigr~ion of all Jews liv-
ing in the territory of the old Reich.”

On Jan. 27, 1942 Adolf Hitler himself proclaimed,
“The Jews must leave Europe. The best thing is that
they go to Russia.”

At the Nuremberg War Crimes Trial, Hans Lam-
mers, chief of the Reich chancellery, testified that
when he asked Heinrich Himmler about Germany’s
“final solution” for the Jews, he was told, “The Jews
must be evacuated from Germany.”

Almost whimsically, when asked how he first dis-
covered that Jews had supposedly been eliminated via
mass murder policies, Lammers told those present,
“Right here, at the Nuremberg trials.” Hermann Goer-
ing offered the same sentiment.

To be perfectly clear, the
Nazis and Adolf Hitler never
planned, intended, plotted or
actually carried out the delibe-
rate «extermination of Jews.

Their solution involved emi-
gration, pure and simple.

There exists no master list
of names documenting six mil-
lion dead Jews killed in camps,
despite numerous people over



A the years trying to compile one. None. There is no list.
Further, in a biography of Hitler, British historian Co-"""]
lin Cross notes, “There does not exist anything like a j
written order signed by Hitler for the extermination of |
Jews in Europe.” Plus, over 60 million documents ob—
tained by U.S. armed forces and the Brits after WW I
have never been released to the public. Rather, they’re
still secreted away at Bad Arolsen, never to see the
light of day. Lastly, protocol orders, or signed state-
ments declaring a “Final Solution” to murder Jews, has
never been revealed from the notorious Wannsee Con-
ference. There is no smoking gun, nor a single scrap of
evidence ever produced to prove that a holocaust w"s
ordered or occurred.

To arrive at the truth, however, documents and his-
torical objectives produced by Zionist leaders must be
examined. To begin, in 1897 the World Zionist Organ-
ization was formed. Financed by Europe’s most in-
fluential, wealthy family, the Rothschilds, their ulti-
mate goal revolved around the creation of an exclusive
Israeli state in the Middle East where diasporic Jews
could return and settle after having been forced to flee
Jerusalem in A.D. 135 by the Romans.

In order to be successful—therefore stealing land
that had been settled by Palestinians for thousands of
years—the Zionist political movement had to create a
victimization tale of such extraordinary lengths that
eternal sympathy for the Jews would result.

But how could they go about inventing such a
heart-rending story, especially when the Zionists we-
ren’t an especially religious outfit? This simple quan-
dary didn’t seem to halt their efforts, for a holocaust,
or “burnt offering,” had to be rooted in Judaic lore.



In particular, Jewish prophets of yore foretold of a
time when, after six million Jews were slaughtered,
only then could their people return to what they consi-
dered their promised land. Even 2,000 years ago, the
number six million played an essential role in justify-
ing the legitimacy of a Jewish state, even if it meant
telling egregious lies and stealing land that belonged to
other people. A casualty count of#ix million became
the political tool leading to a much sought after “re-
ward” of a homeland. Clearly, their end goals were
justified by any means.

The six million “figure” hardly originated with a
body count following WW 1I. Instead, it’s a supersti-
tious, occult number derived from Kabalistic gematria
deep in the texts of ancient Judaism.

This total, seen as supernatural and used in occlilt
rites by the Jewish religious hierarchy two millennia
ago, can never be altered in any way. It’s a dark, di-
abolical number that needs to be repeated over and
over again like a Talmudic, magical incantation.

The figure of six
million—after being
recited and unleashed
on the world—
transformed into a
type of deceptive
spell used to mislead
the goyim, or non-
Jews. That’s why,
even when faced with

overwhelming evidence, modern-day Pharisees of the
holocaust religion can never allow that mystically fa-



bricated total to be lowered. It’s Jewish doctrine, dog-
ma, and unholy scripture all rolled into one.

Derived from the Greek word holos (“whole”) and
caustus (“burnt sacrifice”), the word refers back to an
ancient Jewish ritual wherein parents sacrificed their
innocent children in a fire to the evil god Moloch. In
this sense, the original perpetrators of a holocaust were
the Jews themselves.

Later, this predetermined six million number as-
sumed a supernatural status as if it were released dur-
ing some type of dark occult ceremony. As a result, the
rites of six million promised to empower the Jews if
they could adequately convince the uninitiated that this
many of their people had been killed. Thus, six million
became a literal altar where Jews worshipped and ritu-
alistically repeated the number again and again. In
1944, a Polish Jew named Raphael Lemkinjnvented
the term “genocide,” whereupon the Jews now had a
satanic spell to spread across the world that they could
publicly worship.

But let’s not get ahead of ourselves. The plot to
create an Israeli state (ultimately formed by a UN edict
in 1948) stretches back to a vital event that occurred in
1917. As WW | raged across Europe, the Germans had
all but achieved victory and the impending surrender
of England. To prevent this embarrassing defeat, Zion-
ists approached England’s leader and made a pact with
the devil. In return for the eventual creation of an
Israeli state, they’d lure America into the war and help
the English defeat Germany.



The Brits agreed, and thus U.S. President Woo-
drow Wilson was blackmailed over certain sexual indi-
scretions that he had committed (peccadilloes with a
certain Mrs. Peck). As a
result, Wilson pushed
America into the war even
though he vociferously
campaigned against such a
move.

In Zionism: The Hid-
den History, esteemed
Jewish author Benjamin
Freedman exposed the re-
ality behind WW 1. “Sa-
muel Untermyer blacic-"
mailed Wilson with Mary
Peck’s love letters in or-
der to get Louis Dembitz
Brandeis, the most politi-
cally influential of all
Zionists in the United

Woodrow Wilson

Benjamin H. Freedman

States, appointed to the Su-
preme Court.”

Freedman continued, “Un-
termyer informed President
Wilson that his client was will-
ing to accept $40,000 in lieu of
commencing the breach of



promise action.” Wilson did not have the money, so
Untermyer volunteered to pay the sum on one condi-
tion: that Wilson would appoint to the first vacancy on
the United States Supreme Court a nominee to be rec-
ommended by Untermyer.

At this stage, Freedman revealed the conspirator’s
true intent. “On June 14, 1916 Louis Dembitz Bran-
deis, the most politically in-
fluential of all Zionists in the
United States, on the recom-
mendation of Untermyer, was
appointed to the Supreme
Court. Brandeis volunteered
his opinion to President Wil-
son that the [alleged] sinking
of the SS Sussex by a German
submarine in the English
Channel justified the déclara- Justice Louis Brandeis
tion of war against Germany.”

Finally, the World Zionist Organization’s secretary,
Samuel Landman, stated, “The only way to induce the
American president to come into the war [was] to se-
cure the cooperation of Zionist Jews by promising
them Palestine, and thus enlist and mobilize the hither-
to unsuspectedly powerful forces of Zionist Jews in
America and elsewhere in favor of the Allies on a quid
pro quo contract basis, the Balfour Declaration.”

Now, quite amazingly, widespread claims were
made following WW | that six million Jews had been
slaughtered by the Germans.e

* To stampede the American public into entering
WW |—Dby subjecting them to horrendous propaganda



campaigns crafted by Jewish P.R. men—Germans
were blamed for “eating Belgian babies and delighting
to throw them in the air and transfix them on bayo-
nets.”

_ e Sept. 29, 1919, New York Times, page 7 headline:

®Felix Warburg Tells Sad Plight ofJews—*“The succes-
sive blows of contending armies have all but broken
the back of European Jewry and have reduced to tragi-
cally unbelievable poverty, starvation and disease
about 6,000,000 souls, or half the Jewish population on
earth.”

* 1910 Encyclopedia Britannica—*"“There remain in
Russia and Romania over six million Jews who are be-
ing systematically degraded.” '

o A July 19, 1921 New York Times headline de-
clared: “BEGS AMERICA SAVE 6,000,000 IN
RUSSIA: Massacre threatens
all Jews as Soviet power
\tfanes, declares Kremlin—
Russia’s 6,000,000 Jews are
facing extermination by
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BEGS AMERICA SAVE
6,000,000 IN RUSSIA

Massaae Threatens All Jews as
Scviel Pouter Wanes, Declares
Kreinin, Coming Here far Aid.

massacre.” This plea origi-
nated from Dr. Joseph Krei-
nin, a Zionist activist and
president of the Russian
Joint Board of Jewish Socie-
ties.

* From the Oct. 31, 1919
edition of The American He-
brew, former New York

Copyright, 1021. Ivy Th« Cillesgo Tribune Co.

BERLIN. July in.-Russie* <1,000,000
Jew*» arc facing extermination by mas-
sacre. .As the famine Is »Dreading, the
countererevolutionary movement is gain-
ing and the Soviet*« control is waning.
This statement is borne out by office.!
documents presented to the Berlin Gov-
ernment, which show that numerous po-
groms are raging in all parts of Russia
and the Ukraine.

The Information was gathered by Pr.
Joseph kreinin, a noted Jewish social
worker and President of the Russian
Joint Board O/ Jewish Societies- ’ He
say* tint several villages have been
burned milready and scores killed, aev-

Governor Martin H. Glynn penned an article entitled
The Crucifixion ofJews Must Stop that began, “From
across the sea, 6,000,000 men and women call to us for



help . . . 6,000,000 men and women are dying in the
threatened holocaust of human life.” Glynn also gave a
speech on this very same subject [the holocaust of six
million men and women] in Albany, New York.

» Second Zionist Congress, Basel, 1898—Rabbi
Stephen S. Wise formu-
lated the notion  of
“6,000,000 living, bleed-
ing, suffering arguments in
favor of Zionism.” The
New York Times reported
this meeting in their June
11, 1900 edition.

-+ Chaim Weizmann tes-

tified before the Peel
Commission in 1936, “It is
no exaggeration to say that
six million Jews are sen-
tenced to be imprisoned in
this part of the world [Eu-
rope].”
N Edward J. Rozek
noted in Allied Wartime Diplomacy that English cler-
gymen hounded the British Ministry of Information to
create tales of “gas chambers” used by Germans
against Jews during WW |. However, the story was so
outlandish that the ministry felt it would be too absurd
to risk such a foolish endeavor.

e 1912, American Jewish Yearbook, # 5672, the
American Jewish Committee reported, “Russia has
since 1890 adopted a deliberate plan to expel or exter-



minate six million of its people for no other reason
than that they refuse to become members of the Greek
[sic] Church, but prefer to remain Jews.”

If we move forward to WW II, the man primarily
responsible for inventing the myth of six million
slaughtered Jews was a Jew himself, Ilya Ehrenberg.
As a fiction novelist, Soviet propagandist and leader of
the Jewish anti-fascist committee during WW I, he
appeared in the U.S. and began disseminating fabri-
cated stories of Germans using Jewish corpses to man-
ufacture soap bars as early as 1942.

On Dec. 22, 1944 Ehrenberg was already spewing
the figure of six million in a publication called Soviet
War News. “Ask any German prisoner of war why his
compatriots annihilated six million innocent people,
and he will simply answer: well, they were Jews.”

Also, in Mar. 1945—before the war even ended—
Ehrenberg wrote in Soviet War News, “The world now
knows that Germany has killed six million Jews.”

Thus, Zionists such as Ehrenberg, in collusion with
an organization named the World Jewish Congress,
began peddling their holocaust agenda to Allied forces
during the war. The entire myth originated from these
Jewish individuals, not from any government, inde-
pendent doctors, or trained researchers. Six million
dead Jews in a fiery holocaust is solely a Zionist crea-
tion.

We know this fact to be true because, as already
noted, the Allies utilized extensive intelligence opera-
tions during WW Il and they under no circumstances
uncovered a massive German operation where six mil-
lion Jews were systematically eliminated. Once these

N



deceptive reports began filtering out, all the wartime
commanders knew it to be nothing more than outlan-
dish propaganda.

For instance, in May 1942 Nahum-Goldroan, even-
tual president of the Jewish World Congress, prophe-
sied that millions of Jews would be slaughtered in
Germany. On Dec. 13, 1942 Rabbi Israel Goldstein
referred to a holocaust where six million Jews were
being exterminated—two and a half years before the
war ended. In Feb. 1943 Readers Digest ran a story
claiming that half of the eventual six million Jews tar-
geted by Hitler had already perished. Such a notion is
pure fantasy.

By May 31, 1945 another propagandist, Rabbi Dov
Weissmandel, wrote, “Up to this day, six times a mil-
lion Jews of Europe and Russia have been extermi-
nated.”

All these liars got the ball rolling with sordid tales
of churning Jews into fertilizer, making lampshades
and purses from their skin, or turning their flesh and
fat into bars of soap or glue. They also, by the end of
1942, told over-the-top stories of ovens, crematoria
and gas chambers in German concentration camps. But
as this book has shown, it’s now an agreed-upon
fact—even by holocaust historians—that not a single
homicidal gas chamber or death camp ever existed on
German soil in any of its 20,000 facilities.

Still, these very same Zionist propagandists
coerced Allied forces into dropping leaflets on the
Auschwitz camp (and others) with allegations of mass
gassings. Allied radio stations in Europe also began
reporting claims of a “Final Solution” extermination
policy being waged by the Nazis.



Of course, the dead in these installations largely pe-
rished from starvation and disease after supply lines
had been obliterated by Allied carpet-bombings. The
leaflets dropped by planes in Poland and other parts of
German-controlled territory served as another genesis
of the holocaust myth.

Also, how could anyone dismiss the efforts of Su-
preme Allied Commander Dwight D. Eisenhower, who
disseminated alleged photos of gas chambers and other
alleged mass extermination facilities to the U.S. media,
specifically of Buchenwald and Dachau? Later, proof
arose that neither of these camps had been used as ge-
nocidal extermination centers.

Most interesting of all, by June 1945—Iless than
two months after the end of WW Il—the number six
million had already been firmly established and en-
trenched as the definitive total of Jews killed in Ger-
many’s “holocaust.” No one had investigated all the
thousands of work camps maintained by the Germans,
precisely identified each and every corpse, conducted
intensive demographic surveys or population counts,
or rifled through the rampant chaos of Germany and
the satellite countries around it. Yet a precise, final
count had been erected foreyermore to stand for histo-
ry—six million.

To ensure that their elaborate ruse was cast in con-
crete, a kangaroo court known as the Nuremberg Trials
began on Nov. 20, 1945. Overseeing these show hear-
ings was America’s predecessor to the CIA, the OSS
(Office of Strategic Services). The OSS worked hand-
in-hand with members of the Zionist International and
Soviet Union’s Communist Party. These three primary



entities acted as gatekeepers of all the so-called evi-
dence to be presented.

Behind the scenes, other groups lurked in a realm
of shadows. In a 1978 book, The Jewish Paradox, Na-
hum Goldman wrote, “During the war, the World Jew-
ish Congress created an Institute of Jewish Affairs in
New York. The directors were two great Lithuanian
Jewish jurists, Jacob and Nehemiah Robinson. Thanks
to them, the institute worked out two completely revo-
lutionary ideas: the Nuremburg tribunal and German
reparations.”

Another element that participated in this miscar-
riage of justice was Britain’s Political Warfare Execu-

I' tive (PWE). During WW Il this bureau was responsi-

1 "Ble for disseminating propaganda across Europe. The
PWE helped launch the false notion that Majdanek and
Auschwitz were equipped with gas chambers that
served to exterminate Jews. —>

A 1945 New York Times article by C.L. Sulzberg-
er—a member of the Jewish family that still owns this
newspaper today—provides a good understanding of
where the concentration camp numbers originated.
Sulzberger stated that Soviet Russia supplied the figure
of four million Jews who were allegedly gassed at
Auschwitz.

Once these “totals” were brought to the infamous
trials, a different set of rules was applied to the pro-
ceedings. Article 19 of the Statutes of the International
Military Tribunal declares, “The Tribunal shall not be
bound by technical rules of evidence.” Article 21 fur-
ther states, “The Tribunal shall not require proof of
facts of common knowledge, but shall take judicial no-
tice thereof.”



Thus, not being guided by either evidence or proof,
those at Nuremberg didn’t seem concerned that the
overall number of prisoners held at all German con-
trolled camps in 1943 was 224,000. Then, again using
this same criteria, in 1944 the total amount of prison-
ers—Jews and non-Jews combined—held at all of
Germany’s work camps was 524,000.

Since these two years were when most Jews were
supposedly murdered, how do we go from 524,000
prisoners of Jewish and non-Jewish descent to the as-
tounding total of perhaps 11 million deaths—six mil-
lion of them Jewish? In addition, Time-Life Books
clearly noted that the U.S. held six times as many Jap-
anese, Germans, ltalians and other POWSs as the Nazis
did. Plus, neither came close to equaling Stalin’s
slaughterhouse gulags.

While on the subject of books, doesn’t anyone find
it curious that British icon Winston Churchill’s sprawl-
ing six-volume account of WW IlI, which he found
himself directly involved in, doesn’t once refer to the
genocide of Jews or concentration camp gas cham-
bers? Similarly, Eisenhower omits any and all allu-
sions to these subjects in his memoirs, too.

With the mention of Joseph Stalin a paragraph ago,
how did Communist involvement in the Nuremberg
Trials benefit that mass-murderer’s country? Quite
simply, since the Soviet Union was viewed as an ally
of the U.S. and Britain during WW I, it became an
uncomfortable situation to expose the millions of Rus-
sian citizens that had been annihilated at Stalin’s hands
under his wave of Communist terror.

Hitler didn’t have millions of Jews exterminated,
but the man who sat with FDR and Churchill at Yal-



ta—Joseph Stalin—most certainly did, and both U.S.
and UK leaders knew it. In this light, Communist
claims that millions of Jews had been extinguished un-
der Hitler’s command diverted attention away from
their own inhuman atrocities and mounds of corpses.

Ultimately, once the ridiculous Nuremberg War
Crime Trials had ended with an established verdict that
Nazis had mass murdered six million Jews in concen-
tration camps, this fabricated “holocaust” served to
justify the formation of a new lIsraeli state in Palestine
under the preposterously false mantra, “Never again.”

As fervent propagandists hammered this idea (i.e.
psychic driving) and made it an integral, inarguable
part of history books and conventional wisdom, the
natural result was an outpouring of sympathy for the
Jewish people. As compensation, then, leaders at the
recently formed U.N. decided that—as protection—the
Jews deserved their own nation so that another “holo-
caust” would never again occur.

On Dec. 29, 1979 Nathan Goldman told the Paris
Match how Jews have played the sympathy card.
“Since the Second World War, Jews have been treated
with silk gloves. Without Auschwitz, there would be
no Israel.”

Jews decried the alleged genocide committed
against them by Hitler’s supposed henchmen, yet that
didn’t stop them from engaging in an actual brutal ge-
nocide against the Palestinian people after the creation
of Israel in 1948,

Ironically, from the inception of Zionism in the late
1800s, its plotters would stop at nothing in their aim to
create their own chosen land in Palestinian-settled ter-
ritory. It took the onset of two horrendous world wars,



100-116 million casualties, the decimation of Europe,
and even the dropping of two atomic bombs.

But in the end, the Zionists accepted a plan that
predated the Nazi rise to power where European Jews
would be resettled in Palestine to establish their own
racist colony. As Jews immigrated into Palestine, they
proceeded to wage a decades-long genocide against the
Palestinian people, slaughtering men, women and
children by the hundreds of thousands.



THE MASTER PLAN

Both world wars, at their
crux, developed as a way to
reorder Europe and to establish a
Jewish homeland in Palestine.
The initial setting to put this
plan in motion can be traced
back to Cecil Rhodes’ Round
Table and their meetings at the
Astor family’s Cliveden estate.
To initiate a European New Cecil Rhodes
World Order, it was imperative
that Germany once again became a driving force that

Lord Alfred Milner Lionel Rothschild Arthur James
Balfour

pushed other nations toward war. The ultimate creation
of Adolf Hitler’s Nazism has among its masterminds
Lord Alfred Milner, James, Edmond, Lionel and Na-
thaniel Rothschild, the Warburg brothers, Cecil
Rhodes, Arthur James Balfour, and Lord Robert Cecil
(among others). This elite circle envisioned the promo-
tion of a Teutonic master race that eventually congre-
gated under the Nazi swhstika. The Germans would



see themselves as Nordic rulers establishing a conquer-

ing Third Reich.

To ensure Germany’s defeat in World War 1, the
Balfour Declaration manipulated President Woodrow
Wilson—uvia Judge Louis Brandeis and foreign policy
advisor Colonel House—into saving England from

certain defeat by gua-
ranteeing a homeland
for Jews in Palestine. If
America hadn’t entered
the war, the UK would
have undoubtedly sur-
rendered to Germany.
Lord Robert Cecil, an
architect of the League
of Nations, sought the
erection of this new
nation with such fervor
that his motto became,
“Judea for the Jews.”
Since  Edmond Roth-

schild already oversaw much of Palestinian territory,

all they needed was a new
war following the Treaty of
Versailles.

But Germany—dispirited,
stunned and angered—had to
usher in a vigorous national-
ist leader to lead their resur-
gence. It is rumored (al-
though certainly not proven)
that a London Round Table

A rare copy ofAdolfHitlers
Mem Kampf

agent named Professor Karl Haushofer propelled the



destiny of a young Adolf Hitler by ghostwriting Mein
Kampf.

Then, through the 1920s and 1930s, the Roth-
schilds, Warburgs and Hjalmar Schacht conspired with
financiers at the Bank of England and associated New
York-based tycoons to begin bankrolling such indu-
strialists as 1.G. Farben and the Krupp dynasty.

Within a decade, the German war machine had
reestablished its prowess, while manufacturing
achieved a Drang nach Osten (i.e. German expansion-
ism) effect. In due course, these Zionists in the sha-
dows established Hitler as a force to be reckoned with.
This diabolical collaboration between Jewish money-
men and the Nazi juggernaut continued until 1939,
when they then decided to change course and pull the
rug out from beneath Hitler’s feet. Der Fuhrer, it
seemed, didn’t plan on sticking with their orchestrated
script, thus once again endangering the British Empire.

But the plan was never quite so cut-and-dried. A
Hegelian dialectic was needed to set thesis against an-
tithesis in order to achieve a
final synthesis. Therefore,
despite clear Zionist finan-

$ cial backing of Adolf Hitler,

a counterforce entered the

picture under the auspices of

New York attorney Samuel Untermyer (another Bal-
four participant and Woodrow Wilson puppet-master).

After Hitler and the German people learned of Jew-
ish sabotage against them during WW | (i.e. bringing
America into the war to save Britain), an undeniable
amount of anti-Semitism arose in Germany. Yet rather
than abating this hatred toward the Jews, Zionist lead-
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ers actually sought to increase it so that they could
eventually blame their false holocaust on a rabid ha-
tred of the victimized Jewish population.

On Mar. 12, 1933 Rabbi Stephen Wise’s American
Jewish Congress planned a rally at Madison Square
Garden for Mar. 27. However, three days prior to this
protest, on Mar. 24, London’s Daily Express ran a bold
headline declaring, Judea Declares War on Germany.
The international Jewish leaders involved, including
Untermyer, launched a blistering economic boycott
against Germany that they hoped would bring Hitler
and his country to their knees.

By uniting all Jews into a holy war through a boy-
cott of German goods, these madmén intended to crip-
ple their mighty European foe once and for all. They
declared Germany an enemy of the Jewish people and
wanted to level a final stranglehold from which they’d
never recover.

In response to this call for Germany’s destruction,
on Mar. 28, 1933 Hitler took the defensive measure of
telling his people to refrain from doing commerce with
Jewish shop owners. Establishment historians conve-
niently gloss over the fact that Jews declared an offen-
sive, international war on German finance and industry
prior to Hitler’s retaliation. The Jews behind this
scheme wanted Germany to remain vulnerable, bank-
rupted and without military strength.

The assault against Germany continued for months,
as can be seen from Samuel Untermyer’s Aug. 7, 1933
speech on WABC radio. “Germany has been converted
from a nation of culture into a veritable hell of cruel
and savage beasts,” Untermyer roared during his plea
for a sacred war against Hitler. Untermyer, president



of the World Jewish Economic Federation, also con-
veniently mentioned, or planted a seed— 12 years be-
fore the end of WW II—how the Germans would “ex-
terminate the Jews.”

Around this same time, a Jewish newspaper called
Natscha Retsch demanded, “The war against Germany
will be waged by all Jewish communities, conferences
and congresses ... by every individual Jew.”

At this moment in 1933, with the Committee of
Jewish Delegations, Rabbi Wise’s American Jewish
Congress, and Untermyer’s fanatical legions, the
Jews—uvia their economic boycott—could have
crushed Hitler’s financial status and caused him to fail.
The Germans, already facing stagflation, would have
surely turned on their new leader, causing Nazism to
die a quick death.

But such unity and organization—Ileading to Hit-
ler’s downfall—wouldn’t have contributed to the crea-
tion of an lIsraeli state. So, a toppling of Hitler was
anathema, at least in 1933.

Here is where the situation gets extremely interest-
ing. While Wise and Untermyer insisted on a German
boycott, other Jews in Germany, New York and Lon-
don worked diligently to sabotage their efforts by
promoting the export of German goods. One of the
primary agents in this camp was Chaim Weizmann,
president of the World Zionist Organization.

Interestingly, Weizmann’s
World Zionist Organization
had already started moving

mann realized that a German



boycott would never allow Nazism to flourish. If the
Nazis fell, there would be no one to blame for anti-
Semitism that compelled mass Jewish emigration from
Europe to Palestine.

Thus, a clearly defined, ingenious Hegelian Dialec-
tic had been established. The Wise-Untermyer faction
would decry Nazi anti-Semitism and scare the Jews
into fleeing to Palestine (i.e. a Diaspora based on Ger-
man hostilities).

On the other hand, National Socialism had to pros-
per and not be ruined under a boycott. So, although a
certain amount of boycott fear mongering waS allowed
to persist, ultimately Rabbi Wise crumbled under pres-
sure and failed to vehemently enforce his boycott. Of
course, these individuals repeated their mantra of SS
anti-Semitism and denunciations, but more important
was the financial stability of Hitler’s economy that
would lead them into WW 1.

A key point is now apparent. Zionists needed to en-
ter into what became known as the Transfer Agree-
ment, even acting as the largest distributor of Nazi
goods in the Middle East and other parts of Europe.
These Zionists countered the aforementioned boycott
by pimping Germany’s products for them.

Nazi survival depended on the Transfer Agreement
and an investment of money that propped up Germa-
ny’s war machine. This reasoning provided an excuse
to the Jews for entering into the Transfer Agreement.
So, a trade alliance between Nazis and Zionists would
ultimately facilitate Jewish resettlement in Palestine.
Further, to establish this new homeland, Zionists had
to lie down in bed with the Nazis so that the movement
of capital out of Germany wouldn’t be thwarted.



Whereas one Zionists element kept drumming up
their scare tactics against Adolf Hitler, the other side
fully cooperated with National Socialism in order to
augment their cherished Diaspora. A thriving German
economy was abundantly necessary for their plot to
succeed.

The apparent fissure among Zionists was, in actual-
ity, an illusion—two prongs of the same crown that
worked in unison with one another ... a combination
of sensationalized fear mongering propaganda in con-
cert with the vested interests of financial prosperity for
National Socialism ... all to force European Jewish
immigration into Palestine. The mutual end-goals of
these two factions weren’t in conflict at all. That’s why
one denounced Hitler while the other developed a
close relationship with him.

Jewish scholar Edwin Black later wrote in 1984’s
The Transfer Agreement: The Untold Story of the Se-
cret Pact Between the Third Reich and Jewish Pales-
tine, “Zionist leaders understood that the success of the
future Jewish Palestinian economy would be inextrica-
bly bound up with the survival of the Nazi economy.
So, the Zionist leadership was compelled to go further.
The German economy would have to be safeguarded,
stabilized, and if necessary reinforced. Hence, the Nazi
Party and the Zionist organizers shared a common
stake in the recovery of Germany.”

At any rate, we return once more to the Transfer
Agreement whereby billions of dollars were ushered to
Zionists in Palestine in order to begin the mass move-
ment of Jews toward their new homeland. To guaran-
tee that Diaspora travelers were destined toward the



Middle East, the U.S. limited the number of Jews that
were permitted to cross their borders during WW 1.

There is, naturally, a debate as to whether Adolf
Hitler directly and deliberately entered into a contrac-
tual arrangement with the Rothschilds and Warburgs.
Although both sides in this argument make their case,
one aspect is certain: not once did Hitler, Goebbels,
Goering or any other Nazi leader gublicly criticize the
Transfer Agreement.

Another crucial piece of evidence cannot be denied.
After Samuel Cohen—a close friend of Chaim Weiz-
mann—began his negotiations with Hitler’s repre-
sentatives in Mar. 1933, the Nazi government signed
onto the Haavara Transfer Agreement in the summer
of 1933. A June 22, 1937 document from the German
foreign office (Wilhelmstrasse) states, “This German
position is entirely dictated by domestic considera-
tions. In practice, it promotes the consolidation of Je-
wry in Palestine and thus facilitates the building of a
Jewish state, and could lead
one to conclude that Germany
favors the establishment of a
Jewish state in Palestine.”

Coincidentally, in 1933
Max and M.M. Warburg—via
their Anglo-Palestine Bank—
created the Trust and Transfer
Office Haavara Ltd. in Tel
Aviv. This quasi-financial cen-
ter acted as a conduit that
served both Nazis and Zionists. Via the Transfer
Agreement, the shipment of German goods grew so
quickly that they became the number one exporter to



Palestine by 1937. Needless to say, Hitler’s industrial-
ists derived much needed capital, while simultaneously
opening doors to other Middle East markets. Not only
did this arrangement undermine the Zionist economic
boycott, it also allowed Jewish emigration out of Eu-
rope to Palestine.

In fact, this motive served such a strong role for the
Nazis that they green-lighted the transfer of 60,000
Jews to Palestine between 1933-1939. This collabora-/
tion proved mutually beneficial to the Zionist cause,
also, as outward bound Jews were permitted to retain a
percentage of their financial assets after relocating.

Before 1940, Jewish settlers in Palestine tripled,
while both German and Zionist business interests prof-
ited from this newly created market. Their entrepre-
neurial spirit met the goals of both sides involved.
Ironically, Adolf Hitler’s government lent itself more
than any other legislative body to enhancing Jewish
development of a new state in Palestine. Likewise,
German Jews read the tea leaves by realizing—with
prompting from propaganda-inspired fear mongers—
that they were doomed if remaining in Europe. Thus,
much to their dismay, immigration into the desert be-
came a not-so-desired last option.

The particulars of this arrangement were ingenious.
To prevent being stripped of their wealth, Jews depo-
sited their money in aforementioned Haavara Compa-
ny accounts established by the Warburg brothers.
These funds were then used to purchase German-
manufactured goods needed for construction materials,
tools, and other supplies for development in Palestine.
Once these products were sold, Jewish immigrants re-
ceived their money after relocating. German industrial-



ists thrived, as did Jewish moneychangers. Plus, the
Zionists were pleased that their Diaspora dreams were
coming true, while the Nazis got rid of their despised
enemies: the Jews.

All the while, Arabs in the Middle East were wit-
nessing a tremendous influx of their exact same ene-
mies: the Jews. But since Hitler’s Aryan circle equally
saw Muslims as racially inferior as Jews, they never
batted an eye in regard to a major conflict arising in
that region once a new Israeli state was created.

In an oddity among oddities, in wiftter 1934 two of
the most unlikely shipmates sailed from Germany to
the Palestinian port of Haifa. These men were Kurt
Tuchler of the Zionist Federation and Leopold von
Mildenstein, an SS officer. Once reaching Palesting,
they toiled for six months investigating the possibili-
ties of Zionist development.

Nazi & Star of David medal commissioned by Goebbels commemorating the voyage ofBaron Leo-
pold von Mildenstein and Kurt Tuschler to establish a Zionist homeland in Palestine

Another similar incident occurred in the opening
months of 1935 when a Jewish owned ship called the
Tel Aviv left Bremerhaven flying a swastika banner. To
commemorate these voyages, a German newspaper,
Der Angriff, applauded the collaborative efforts of the



Zionists and SS by releasing a medal that bore a swas-
tika on one side and a Star of David on the other.

Even more telling, both
the Zionists and Nazis har-
bored a distinct sense of ra-
cial superiority over other
peoples. The philosophy of
Nazi supremacy is only sur-
passed by doctrines of Jew-
ish purity. Whereas the SS
looked to Odin and the
Thule Society to purify their
race, elite Zionists turned to
the Talmud as their inspira-
tion.

In this sense, neither the
Nazis nor Zionists had any desire to let others assimi-
late into their ranks, whereas an urgent sense of identi-
ty caused both to seek separate and distinct existences
apart from those they saw as inferior to them.

Theodor Herzl, the founder of modem political
Zionism, vowed that Jews could not be accommodated
among other people or nations. They required a ho-
meland of their own, a goal the Nazis were more than
willing to help accommodate, if for no other reason
than to free themselves of what they saw as a Jewish
toxin that had poisoned their ideal state.

Despite their overt antagonism toward each other,
collaboration between these disparaging forces contin-
ued during the 1930s. Both agreed that, in light of their
distinct feelings of racial superiority, Jews couldn’t
reside in harmony on German soil or among Aryans.



As a result, it appealed to each of their national in-
terests that emigration into Palestine best suited all of
the parties involved. Although devotees from both
sides feel pained to admit it, a tremendous amount of
cooperation existed between Nazis and Zionists. In-
deed, the Zionist movement enjoyed a great deal of
support from the German government and SS until, at
least, 1938.

As has already been established, a small yet elite
cabal of Zionists—via the Transfer Agreement—
prevented a systematic dismantling of the fledgling
Hitler regime. International Jewry, at least on one lev-
el, sought to undermine the German economy. But a
tactical allegiance between European Zionists and Na-

zi Party members was forged
on a common goal: shipping
Jews en masse to Palestine.
Numerous books chronicle
these collaborations, including
Ben Hecht’s overview of Jew-
ish attorney Rudolf Kastner’s
interactions with Adolf Eich-
mann and Heinrich Himmler.
Similarly, Hannah Arendt’s
HANNAH ARENDT contribution, Eichmann in Je-
Ercteoisan < amripie rusalem, portrays the hidden
Zionist-Nazi pacts. [Kastner
was put to death by the Israel
government in 1957 after a court found him guilty of
collaborating with the Nazis.]

Once WW I concluded, Dr. Hans Friedenthal,

leader of Germany’s Zionist Federation, confessed,



“The Gestapo did everything in those days to promote
emigration, particularly to Palestine.”

This relationship extended to German SS members
assisting in the establishment of 40 Zionist training
camps throughout Germany. At these installations,
Jews actually flew blue-and-white flags that later be-
came their national symbol.

Up to as late as 1938, Adolf Hitler personally ac-
knowledged that the deportation (i.e. cleansing) of
Jews from Germany to Palestine required his govern-
ment’s assistance. Regardless of the costs and dangers,
Germany was better without the presence of Jews
among their ranks.

As a sign of what extents they went to, Hitler’s
forces—along with those of Italy’s Benito Mussolini—

helped train what came j
to be known as the Irgun
Strike Force. These Kill-
ers, led by Menachim
Begin (the father of
modern-day  terrorism
and a future Israeli prime
minister) prepared for a
Menachim Begin Wanted Poster time when fO”OWing
the creation of Israel in 1948—they’d unmercifully
slaughter Palestinians whose land they had just stolen.

Still, this joint emigration program faced opposi-
tion, primarily from the Brits, who placed severe travel
restrictions on German Jews fleeing to Palestine. From
1937 to 1939, to combat these impositions, SS security
forces and a preliminary version of the Mossad be-
came even more secretive in their illegal smuggling
operations. Clandestine fleets of ships reached their



height during the years 1938-1939 as a sense of despe-
ration began to settle in over Europe.

At the same time, beginning in 1937, the Germans
began to reevaluate the creation of an Israeli state in
Palestine. Since this new nation could never attract or
support every Jew, the Germans realized that a Fran-
kenstein’s monster had been surreptitiously created.

On Jan. 27, 1939 Joachim von Ribbentrop— Adolf
Hitler’s foreign minister—issued a memo warning,
“Germany must regard the formation of a Jewish state
as dangerous because it would bring an international
increase in power to World Jewry.”

Yet, up until 1941, at least to a small degree, the SS
lent their services to dispatching German Jews to Pa-
lestine. Additionally, the last kibbutz training facility
on German soil wasn’t disbanded until 1942. At this
juncture, with America entering the war and the re-
quirement of even more German males to fight on
multiple fronts, the Germans decided that instead of
deporting Jews to Palestine, they’d instead place them
in work camps to be used as labor in their war machine
factories.



JEWS HAD JEWS KILLED

In the end, to achieve their ultimate goal of a new
state and homeland in Palestine, elite Zionist Jews—
not Nazis or Adolf Hitler—choreographed the deaths
of their own Jewish people during WW Il. These Jews
didn’t die in gas chambers or ovens, but were aban-
doned by Jewish leaders that sought revenge against
them for failing to heed their emigration demands (i.e.
out of Germany to the Middle East).

Jews killed the Jews, not Germans.

To reiterate the mechanics of their grand scheme, a
sordid Hegelian dialectic came into play. First, filling
the role of thesis, World Jewry announced an econom-
ic boycott against Germany. As an antithesis, this
move pushed Hitler and the German people closer to
peril and inflamed their feelings of anti-Semitism. The
resulting synthesis, then, arose via collaboration (i.e.
the Transfer Agreement) between Zionists and Nazis
to initiate a Diaspora to Palestine.

This “final solution” absolutely did not involve
mass executions of Jews, but instead a mass exodus of
Jews to this new homeland. <

The final solution equaled exodus, not execution.

Now, to lay out another Hegelian dialectic, even
though Samuel Untermyer and Chaim Weizmarin—at
least on the surface—took opposing stances against
Hitler’s rise to power, they still worked in unison.

Untermyer—Dboycott, crush Germany economically



Weizmann—Transfer Agreement, bolster Germa-
ny’s economy

Along with their Round Table co-conspirators in
England, all three factions had an overriding fear and
loathing of a powerful Germany, thus forming a new
thesis element to our equation.

As an antithesis, Hitler and the Nazis concluded
that they had to defend themselves against these ene-
mies. The Germans never wanted war, but the eventual
synthesis could only be WW Il and a fake holocaust
that would then be used as an excuse, or justification,
for a newly created Israeli state.

In theory, their grand Zionist design seemed possi-
ble. Except, much to the elite Jews’ dismay, it wasn’t
Hitler that proved a stumbling block to their plan, but
other Jews themselves. Following WW |—and Hitler’s
early rise to power in the late 1920s into the 1930s—
most everyday Jews in Germany identified as Ger-
mans, not misallocated Judeans.

The powerful Rothschild family became disturbed
by the fact that they’d lost con-
trol of their Jewish underlings—
not only physically, but also on
a mental level. German Zionists
seeking a mass aliyah (migra-
tion to Palestine) only consti-
tuted a small percentage of the
overall population. So, to get a
precise count, or number, of
German Jews, the Rothschilds
contracted with IBM to make
punch cards that would identify



every Jew in Germany. That way, the Rothschilds had
a much better idea of what they were dealing with as a
prelude to Jews being rounded up and shipped to Pa-
lestine.

The Rothschilds and their other Zionist allies were
also frustrated with the English because they had never
turned over Palestine to the Jews following WW 1 (in
accordance with the Balfour Declaration that stated
Jews would save England from the Germans by drag-
ging America into the war). In return, Brits were sup-
posed to begin the process of creating a new Israeli
homeland.

But by failing to do so, Zionists needed to initiate a
second Great War that would crystallize their plans. To
accomplish such a feat, the Zionists fomented an eco-
nomic boycott against Germany, deliberately fueled
the fires of anti-Semitism against their own people (via
Hitler’s Nazi Party), and then financially joined forces
with National Socialism under the Transfer Agreement
so that Germany would meteorically rise to become
another military superpower.

The Jews started WW |, and by destabilizing Eu-
rope and placing the English Empire at risk yet again
in the late 1930s, they also paved the way for WW I,
all so that a new nation could be created for them.

However, yet again, regardless of these Zionist ef-
forts, Jews—not Nazis or communists or Mussolini—
were their major obstructions. Why? Even though
‘Zionists sought a Jewish state by any means necessary,

> typical European Jews didn’t cherish the thought of
relocating from their homes to a god-forsaken Middle
East desert where the native Arabs despised and re-
sented them. In fact, it was the last thing on their



minds. The vast majority of Jews were mortified by
the prospect of living in a barren, excruciatingly hot,
undeveloped desert where they were unwanted intrud-

€ers.

The Rothschilds, in contrast,'had other ideas. Orig-
inally, they intended to round up the Jews—identified

Mayer Amschel Rothschild

with IBM punch cards—
export them to the Mid-
dle East, and then have
these uprooted transients
fight the Arabs for their
property. Obviously, the
Jews wanted no part of
such an outlandish or-
deal.

Nearly two decades
earlier, in 1921, a rabid
Zionist leader named

Vladimir Jabotinsky proc-

laimed to the twelfth annual
Zionist Congress, “In working
for Palestine, | would even
ally myself with the devil.”
But German Jews couldn’t
reconcile themselves to the
fanciful aspirations of their
elite Zionist counterparts. To
European Jews, Palestine was

by no means a “promised land.” Rather, it represented
everything hostile, distant, unwelcoming and strenuous
they could imagine. None were eager to abandon the
relative security of their current residences for such an

unknown undertaking.



Needless to say, a chasm developed among the
Jews with political Zionists on one hand aligned
against the hesitant masses that didn’t share their sup-
posedly utopian visions of Palestine. The latter group
actually took pride in being Germans and/or Euro-
peans. They thought: to hell with some long-ago bibli-
cal territory that their supposed ancestors had allegedly
been forcibly evicted from 2,000 years earlier.

The Rothschilds and their elite allies became in-
creasingly enraged by such reluctant attitudes. While
most of the “ignorant Jews” (at least in their eyes)
were more than willing to at least try assimilating in-
to—albeit apart from—European society, to the Zion-
ists, assimilation served as anathema ... the enemy.

The only method to accomplish the creation of an
Israeli state ... the Jews’ “Final Solution” . . . was
another war. To prime the pumps for WW Il and a
mass exodus of Jews, this monstrous cabal had to
create such an atmosphere of anti-Semitism that other
“lowly, unenlightened” Jews would have no alternative
than to relocate. After the Transfer Agreement was
enacted (allowing Jews to forward their financial re-
sources to Palestine), Zionists hidden in the shadows
engineered a full frontal campaign of virulent anti-
Semitism.

But this anti-Semitism was, to a large extent, self-
created, arising from the Zionists themselves that
viewed their “cause” as inordinately more important
than the lives of Jewish people. According to a Zionist
named Jacob Klatzkin, if European Jews were reticent
to establish a purified promised land in Palestine, then
they were “living a false and perverted existence.”



Such self-loathing propaganda also emanated from
the likes of modern-day Zionist founder Theodor
Herzl, who characterized Jews opposed, to their case as

“disgusting, dirty, anti-
Zionist kikes.” To Herzl,
any Jew not in line with
their Zionist aims of a puri-
fied, separatist homeland
was defined as a kike.
Herzl’s vile nature as-
sumed such a pronounced
level of hatred against his
own people that he actually
conspired with known anti-
Semitic leaders and gov-
ernments—not to lessen
attacks on Jews, but to in-
crease them. In his diary, Herzl wrote, “The anti-
Semites will be our most dependable friends.” Far
from opposing anti-Semitism, Herzl and his kind pro-
moted it in order to make Germany so unbearable that
Jews would have no option but a mass exodus to Pa-
lestine. Self-created anti-Semitism became an integral
component in their Hegelian Dialectic. Adolf Hitler—
rather than being their enemy—instead filled an unwit-
ting role as a force directed against German Jews that
harbored little sympathy for the Zionist prize in Pales-
tine.

To keep the pressure on from all sides, some Jew-
ish factions demanded an economic boycott against
Germany while others conversely collaborated with
the Nazis to bolster their manufacturing base (i.e. the
Transfer Agreement). Then, to complete this scenario,



author Ben Hecht wrote in
Perfidy, “The Zionist move-
ment led a broad campaign of
incitement against the Jews
living under Nazi rule to
arouse the government’s ha-
tred of them, to fuel ven-
geance against them, and to
expand the mass extermina-
tion.”

Again, the only aspect of
this analysis that Hecht got
incorrect was his use of the
word “extermination.” Actually, the Zionists longed
for an increase in Jewish resettlement to Palestine to
formalize their political and nationalist dreams. But to
take advantage of their once-in-a-lifetime opportunity,
they needed a festering cauldron of self-created anti-
Semitism that would lead to—at least on the surface—
a (fake) holocaust. Only under such a twisted Machia-
vellian banner could they visibly seize land in Pales-
tine as their new state.

Here’s where the crux of Jewish sickness becomes
most apparent. To elite Zionists like the Rothschilds
and Theodor Herzl, any Jew not willing to support
their cause of Palestinian emigration were therefore no
use to them whatsoever. As such, with WW Il raging
throughout Europe, these Jews would ultimately be
abandoned—hung out to dry, so to speak—and the
Zionists atop the control pyramid would turn a blind
eye as Hitler’s forces rounded them up to use as labor-
ers in their work camps.



From the perspective of these Zionists, any Jew not
onboard with their cause had betrayed them. In return,
these elitists would commit the ultirpate act of betrayal
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100% UNAMERICAN

by transforming the remaining European Jews into
scapegoats and forfeiting them to concentration camps
where thousands would ultimately die from starvation
and disease. Of course, after the war, they would then
claim that Hitler’s henchmen had horfibly executed the
deceased in abominable concentration camps. Only
evil geniuses could hatch such a plot.

But when the truth is told, Jewish rabbis were most
certainly able to negotiate with Nazi guards to have
Jewish prisoners released from their work camps. They
chose, however, not to do so because these Jewish “be-
trayers” needed to be the sacrificial lambs on the altar
of their Zionist cause.



While rabbis refused to assist captured Jews, many
Jewish policemen assisted in rounding up fellow Jews
and placing them in work encampments. At these facil-
ities, another dirty secret is that many of the guards
were also Jewish [i.e. The Sonder/commandoes].

In closing, the actual mass murderers that incited
WW Il and led thousands of their own people to die in
Nazi work camps were Jews themselves such as
Chaim Weizmann, Israel’s first president, David Ben-
Gurion, and elite European Jewish families such as the
Rothschilds.” If a Jew balked at being harshly relocated
to Palestine, they were cut off like branches from a
tree. Their fate was one of worms or dust being tram-
pled underfoot of a much larger Zionist cause.

Only the secret elite shall survive, using as their
pawns other unwitting Jews that forsook their lives in
Europe to build a new Israeli state in the Middle East.
All the rest ... let them die, the Zionists concluded,
washing their hands of them.

Or, as Ben Hecht wrote in Perfidy, “There was a
strong similarity between our attitudes in the SS and
the viewpoint of these immensely idealistic Zionist
leaders. | believe that [Rudolf] Kastner [an associate of
David Ben-Gurion] would have sacrificed a thousand
or a hundred thousand of his blood to achieve his polit-
ical goal. “You can have the others,’ he would say, ‘but
let me have this group here’ [the elite Jews]. Because
Kastner rendered us a great service by helping keep the
deportation camps peaceful, | would let his group [the
elite] escape. After all, I was not concerned with small
groups of a thousand or so Jews . . . that was the ‘gen-
tlemen’s agreement’ | had with Kastner.”



Despite decades of propaganda, the Jews that pe-
rished in these camps didn’t do so at the hands'of some
inhuman SS extermination machine. Rather, they
starved and died of diseases orchestrated by the han-
diwork of their own diabolical Zionist leaders that al-
lowed Allied forces to bomb German supply lines.
These elite Jews crafted their own “holocaust” of ap-
proximately 100,000 Jews—their own people—at the
end of WW 1l so that the facilitation of a new homel-
and would be guaranteed. The finger of blame for The
blood of these dead Jews can only be pointed in one
direction—at the Jews themselves. They were respon-
sible . . . they were wholly responsible.



THE TRUTH IS DANGEROUS

Today, if a book similar to this one were published in Europe, its author
would be arrested and imprisoned. Their crime: simply questioning the so-called
holocaust where six million Jews were allegedly exterminated during WW 1.

Indeed, researchers have endured solitary confinement, brutal beatings by
Jewish assailants, ongoing harassment, lengthy court battles, career suicide,
and media attacks directed against their work — all because they presented a
“revisionist history” of this pivotal event.

Other writers have been the victims of hate crimes, extensive smear campaigns,
fines, death threats, and monetary rewards placed upon their heads after going into
hiding.

The perpetrators behind these jack-booted Thought Police tactics are an entire
holohoax industry devoted to suppressing factual data in favor of peddling heavy-
handed doses of propaganda.

Despite these obvious dangers, TheHolocaust |
element of what has become the 20th century’s most grotesque conspiracy.
Covered injarring detail is the mythology surrounding “concentration camps,” 1
the truth about Zyklon B, Anne Frank’s fable, how the absurd “six million”
figure has become a laughingstock, and the betrayal by maniacal Zionists of
their own Jewish people that led to their deaths (via starvation and disease) after
Allied bombings cutoff supply lines to German work camps.

Yet, the only way an Israeli state could be created on stolen Palestinian land
following WW 1l was through the most outlandish lies imaginable. Consequently,
the holohoax industry has become a tyrannical dictatorship that incessantly
manipulates, distorts, marginalizes and manufactures false results to achieve their
Machiavellian ends. By taking their hysterical obsessions to psychopathic levels®
the charlatans behind this ruse make it glaringly apparent how weak their
.foundation is. -«

To compensate, these intellectually dishonest conmen (and women) continue
to persecute revisionist historians all because they’re incapable of supporting
their arguments through legitimate debate. The Holocaust Hoax Exposed is the
final nail in a rotting coffin that has long been buried beneath a plethora of deceilf.
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